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THIS IS MEDIA GENERAL

Media General is a multimedia company
operating leading newspapers, television
stations and online enterprises primarily in
the Southeastern United States.

The company’s publishing assets include
three metropolitan newspapers, The Tampa
Tribune, Richmond Times-Dispatch, and
Winston-Salem Journal; 22 daily community
newspapers in Virginia, North Carolina,
Florida, Alabama and South Carolina; and
more than 150 weekly newspapers and
other publications.

The company’s broadcasting assets include
23 network-affiliated television stations that
reach more than 32 percent of the television
households in the Southeast and
nearly 9.5 percent of those in the
United States.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

{Iin millions, except per share amounts)

Dec. 30, Dec. 31, %
For Fiscal Years Ended 2007 2006 Change
Revenues $ 9322 S 9649 (3.4}
Operating cash flow 182.4 206.1 {11.5)
Depreciation and amortization 75.2 68.4 9.9
Operating income 107.2 137.7 (22.1)
Income from continuing operations $ 10.3 s 63.1 (83.7}
Discontinued operations 0.4 159 (97.5)
Net income 10.7 79.0 (86.5)
Stockholders’ equity 913.0 937.4 (2.6)
Total assets 2,471 2,505.2 (1.4}
Average shares outstanding - assuming dilution 22.8 238 4.2)
Earnings per share - assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.45 ] 2.65 (83.0)
Income from discontinued operations 0.02 0.67 (97.0)
Net income 0.47 3.32 (85.8)
Dividends per share 0.92 0.88 45
Stockholders’ equity per share 40.38 38.87 39
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Our mission is to be the leading provider
of high-quality news, information and
entertainment in the Southeast by continually
building our position of strength in

strategically located markets.
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TO OUR SHAREROLDERS:

For Media General and our entire industry, 2007 was a

difficult year — perhaps the most difficult in recent memory,
or even in history.

We faced, and continue to face, many challenges: from

shifting customer needs and expectations; from Internet-
based competitors; from structural changes in industries
that have historically been major purchasers of newspaper
and television advertising; from a cyclical economy; and for
some companies, including Media General, from a severely
depressed Florida economy.

Responding to these challenges, our Directors, manage-

ment and dedicated employees have undertaken aggressive
strategic, operational and financial steps to strengthen

and transform the company with a great sense of urgency.
Our mission and core strategy are to improve shareholder
value by delivering excellent local content in strang growth
markets over multimedia ptatforms. We seek to effectively
leverage our multimedia assets to reach more people in
mare ways, and to provide effective delivery for our advertis-
ers 1o their target customers.

Initiatives to increase audience and market share

Investing in and growing our Interactive Media business
by offering a wide array of online products and services,
including successful and profitable advergames and
expanding our alliances with online partners such as
Yahoo!

Restructuring and expanding the Interactive Media Divi-
sion’s management team in 2007, including the naming of
a new division president with a strong record of success in

We are leading change for our readers,
viewers, visitors and advertisers, with
the right strategies, strong markets,
highly motivated employees, and
aggressive execution.

creating and growing local online enterprises.

Adapting a successful and innovative “Web-First” ap-
proach in 2007 in all newsrooms and developing new
capabilities for pushing news and information to mobile
devices.

Completing the conversion to digital transmission at our
television stations, launching high-definition local news in
five markets, and introducing secondary digital channels
in several markets.

Expanding the creation of new print, broadcast and online
products to reach diverse and untapped audiences. In
2007, the Publishing Division generated $40 million

from new product initiatives and the Broadcast Division
realized 522 million from similar efforts.

Dramatically reducing and controlling expenses wher-
ever possible. In 2007, we reduced Publishing Division
expenses more than 4% from the prior year, excluding
the impact of an extra week in 2006. Broadcast Division
expenses for the stations we owned fully for both years
increased only 2.6%, not including higher depreciation
expense related to our significant digital investment,
again excluding the extra week in 2006.

Streamlining a variety of operations in Tampa in 2007 and
consolidating, outsourcing and eliminating jobs to align
expenses with the revenue environment.

Balancing more closely our publishing and broadcasting
portfolios, including our mid-2006 purchase of four NBC
stations that make us less dependent on traditional
newspaper business.

Implementing, in six markets, a multimedia convergence




strategy to maximize our operating efficiencies and to
leverage the strengths of our newspapers, broadcasting
and cnline assets. In Tampa, where we pioneered this
approach, our media platforms have an unduplicated
reach of more than 75% of the total market.

People need and want credible, reliable and real-time
information. No one in our region is more effective at
gathering, analyzing, packaging and providing local news,
infarmation and entertainment than Media General.

Consclidated Financial Results

Media General's net income in 2007 decreased to $10.7
million from $79 million in 2006. While certain infrequent
items were notable, they largely offset one another (an
insurance recovery gain, accrued losses related to the SP
Newsprint and television station divestitures, and invest-
ment write-downs).

The income decline primarily reflected much lower
Political revenues from a record in 2006, lower advertising
revenues overall, most significantly in Tampa and in the
Classified advertising category, and a significant loss from
our share of SP Newsprint's operating results.

Publishing Division Results

Publishing Division performance was soft throughout
2007. All major advertising categories declined, especially
Classified advertising, and particularly in the Tampa market.
Excluding the estimated impact of the extra week in 2006
and despite operating expenses that were down maore than
4%, division profit declined 23%, as revenues decreased by
8%. The expense savings were generated by re-engineering
initiatives and lower newsprint costs. Challengesin the
Tampa market caused most of the division's decline while,
on the other hand, the Richmond Times-Dispatch and certain
community newspapers actually generated profit increases
in 2007.

Broadcast Division Results
Broadcast Division profits in 2007 declined approximately
22%, excluding results of the NBC stations purchased in

Marshall N. Morton, President and Chief Executive Officer, and 1. Stewart Bryan [, Chairman.,

mid-2006. While the extra week in 2006 was a factor in the
division’s performance, results were more heavily impacted
by substantially reduced Political advertising and the
absence of the Winter Olympics in 2007, Political advertising
revenues of $7.6 millicn were stronger than expected in this
off-election year, but were only 15% of the previous year’s
record performance,

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the company initiated
plans to divest three television stations and their associated
Web sites, and we continue to pursue the sale of two other
stations. Net proceeds from the sale of any television station
will be used to reduce debt.

Interactive Media Division Results

The Interactive Media Division improved its operat-
ing loss to $2.8 million in 2007 from $3.1 million in 2006,
ex¢cluding net investment related write-downs in both years.
Revenues increased approximately 35%, excluding the extra
week in 2006, Page views and visitor sessions for 2007 rose
approximately 6.6% and 109, respectively, driven in part by
our “Web-First” approach in a number of markets and by our
Yahoo! partnership.

The company's advergaming business had a breakout
year and became profitable as revenues tripled. Lower Clas-
sified advertising volumes, however, particularly in Tampa,
adversely affected the division's revenues and profits for the




year. On the other hand, local online advertising increased
more than 50%, as banners and sponsorships continued to
grow. National/Regional online revenues doubled for the
same period, as relationships with an expanding network of
national agencies translated into more advertisers.

SP Newsprint Sale

On January 18, 2008, Media General and its partners
entered into an agreement to sell SP Newsprint Company.
We expect to generate after-tax proceeds of $37 million
to 540 million from the transaction, and we will use these
proceeds to pay down debt. Completion of the transaction
is expected in March or April 2008. This divestiture will
eliminate the earnings volatility we have experienced in

recent years from our one-third ownership of SP Newsprint.

Moreover, the transaction will benefit Media General by
enabling us to focus fully on our core business as a pure
content company.

Cross-Ownership

On December 18, 2007, the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) adopted a new newspaper/broadcast
cross-ownership rule, which allows a company to own
a newspaper and a broadcast station in the Top 20 U.S.
markets if certain standards are met. More immediately
important for us, the FCC granted permanent waivers to our
existing combinations in the Tampa, Southwest Virginia/
Tennessee, Myrtle Beach/Florence, 5.C., Columbus, Ga,,
and Panama City, Fla., markets, which have been operating

L]

successfully on a converged basis for many years.

We were gratified by the FCC’s action, which is an official
validation of what we have been saying for years: that
common ownership and convergence allow us to serve local
communities better, and with greater amounts of high-
quality local news and informaticn.

This business model gives us more tools and allows us
to do a better job reaching our audiences when, where and
how they want. This ultimately leads t¢ more eyes on our
products, which is critical to our competitive success. We
continue to believe that the benefits of cross-ownership
should be available to communities of all sizes, and we will
continue to press for ownership relief in all-sized markets.

2008 Outlook

We expect our financial performance in 2008 to be
stronger than 2007, Qur Breadcast Division should benefit
significantly from the return of Political and Clympic rev-
enues, the synergies created from the full integration of the
four NBC stations we purchased in 2006, and the expanded
opportunities we gain through digital transmission. While
the Publishing Division expects tough economic conditions
to continue, particularly in Tampa, we expect that the further
development of hyper-local and targeted products will help
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offset fower revenues from traditional newspaper advertis-
ers. Our growing Interactive Media Division is poised to
achieve its first full year of profitability, driven by continued
strong revenue growth from its Web sites, including the
benefits of our partnership with Yahoo!, and increased sales
from our high-margin advergaming business.

At the same time, we will continue to focus on expense
management, We are driving hard for debt reduction, which
we axpect to accomplish through lower capital spending
and by redeployment of the proceeds from asset sales. Our
2008 capital spending budget is $45 million compared to
expenditures of $78 million in 2007 and $94 million in 2006.

Media General has been a successful operator in the
media business for nearly 160 years. We have been through
many economic cycles, experienced many market and
technological disrupticns, and dealt successfully with these
challenges. Importantly, we are deeply embedded in the
DNA of our regian, which, despite the current housing-
related recession in Tampa, remains one of the nation’s
fastest-growing and economically robust markets.

We believe Media General is well-underway in success-
fully transforming itself in a rapidly changing industry.

We are confident that our financial results will improve
over time, based on the clear and consistent initiatives we
are executing and on the fundamental strengths of our
assets, and our region. As always, we remain committed to
building long-term value for our shareholders, our custom-
ers, and our communities.

Yours sincerely,

W/%W—_

J. Stewart Bryan il
Chairman of the Board

Mctel) M

Marshall N. Morton
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 2008
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‘J‘\{c? lau\n\cfr}ed our first Contin-
u\c_>jus N(E\:ys Desk at the Tampa
News Center in August, and
we will complete the full
conversion to our “Web-First”
pracess in 2008. In the first
months after introducing the
new approach in Tampa, page
views for local news were
consistently more than 60%
ahead of the previous year
and monthly unique visitors
were up 25%.

Using this approach, our jour-
nalists break news when it
happens. They ne longer wait
for the next newscast or edi-
tion of the paper to provide
their readers and viewers with
up-to-the-minute reporting
on important local events.

To facilitate the process, we
reassigned staff, introduced
new scheduling, and pro-
vided the tools and training
needed to create the type
of local Web content that is
attracting new visitors and
advertisers.

We are providing continually
updated headlines, news
stories, weather events and
traffic alerts on our Web
sites. We focus on online's
primetime, which includes
the periods from 5 a.m. to

We are executing a “Web-First” approach in all
of our newsrooms. This continuous news pro-
cess means we break news when it happens.
Most often that means online reporting first.

10 a.m. and from 2 pm.to 5
p.m. Some of our newspaper
Web sites are on their way to
becoming virtual television
operations as the use of
video in our online report-
ing continues to increase
significantly. We also deliver
news and information to a
variety of mobile devices.

As a result of this change,

all of our news reports are
fresher. Every time we add to
a story, we move it forward
with new information

and context. We also have
stronger and more urgent

headlines to post to Yahoo!'s
news pages, which brings
more visitors to our local
Web sites.

Our newsroom staffs have
become more adept in the
art of headline writing and
the use of key words, which
helps optimize our content
for search engines.

By the end of 2008, we will
have redefined at least 10% of
all newsrcom jobs to support
“Web-First”







Online Advertising

We made important strides
in 2007 with many online
advertising initiatives, evolv-
ing along with changing
customers and technology.
We also redesigned our Web
sites for better display and
easier ad placement.

With more creative ways to
package, present and sell
advertising, our local media
sites are gaining revenue
rapidly.

Classified advertising was

the first meaningful online
revenue driver. Now we are
exploiting emerging catego-
ries such as sponsored search,
targeted placement, video,
mobile and e-mail. We have
made display advertising
searchable in the same way as
Classified.

Notable for 2007 was the
launch of our groundbreaking
partnership with Yahoo! This
will enable the company to

increase revenues for re-
cruitment and other forms
of advertising, and it will
significantly increase visitor
exposure to our online local

Yahoo! technology provides
our advertisers with sophisti-
cated targeting capabilities.

news and information. All

of our daily newspapers are
now on the Yahoo! Hotlobs
platform, and we are moving
at full speed to exploit the
many attractive opportuni-
ties, Job searches on our sites
have increased, margins are
improving and more advertis-
ers buy 30-day listings.

Our multifaceted
partnership with
Yahoo! provides

growth.

new opportunities
for online revenue

This advanced ad-serving
technology selectively
exposes users to ads for the
specific categories that inter-
est them most.

Yahoo! Partnership

We have executed aggressively on our Yahoo!
partnership and have had solid success from the
launch of our online employment Classifieds being
co-branded with Yahoo! Hotlebs. tn 2007, we gen-
erated approximately $3.5 million in help-wanted
advertising through the Hotlobs partnership.

Advergaming

Our advergaming business had a breakout year
in 2007. Revenues from this business mare than
tripled and profit was approximately $2.6 million.

Local and National Online Ads

Local advertising revenue growth is driven by new
forms of online messaging, including performantce-
based, branded entertainment, video, rich media,
e-mail direct and self-service. Robust National
revenues are driven by major accounts, agency
relationships and multimedia and multi-market sales.




Mobile Delivery

The newest frontier for interac-
tive media is mobile delivery,

and Media General is serving a
growing list of subscribers, Our
first step was to provide text alerts
for content categories that users
select in advance, such as news,
weather, sports or traffic.

Next, we developed content that
is of specific relevance to the
user’s location, which abounds
with advertising opportunities.
Qur initial focus has been on real
estate and automobile advertisers,
both national and local.

More than 30 of our
Web sites offer mobile
services, and we are
adding an average of
800 new subscribers
every month.

For example, one can drive by

a house for sale and text a code
number that is posted on the
realtor's sign and then receive
detailed infermation about the
property, including the realtor’s
name and phone number. For
someone visiting a dealer lot after
hours, he or she can text a code on
the car’s sticker to receive details.

There are many more products
and services that fit well with
mobile marketing, and we are
providing training in every market
to sales representatives on how to
serve advertisers.
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Our television stations are taking advantage of the
expanded spectrum digital broadcasting provides.

Our Broadcast Division is
prepared for one of the most
significant milestones in the
history of broadcasting with
the end of analog TV coming
in February of 2009.

Having substantially
completed its conversion to
digital transmission, we have
also made significant invest-
ments to position our stations
as the technological leader in
our markets.

Four Media General stations
were among the first 100

in the country to introduce
HDTY in 2007, and a fifth will
begin in the first quarter of

2008. This enhanced viewing
experience produces images
with five times the detail of
analog, delivering sharper
images, more vivid color and
crystal clear sound quality.

In addition, many of our
stations have new digital
control rooms, digital cameras
for our photographers and
enhanced graphics systems
that dramatically improve our
programs.

A concerted effort is under-
way to help educate our
viewers to this major change

in the way consumers receive
“over the air, free TV.” Qur sta-
tions are airing public service
announcements and provid-
ing learning tools on cur Web
pages explaining the change,
providing direction or obtain-
ing discount coupons for new
Digital Television Adapter
(DTVA) receivers and detailing
the advantages of HDTV.
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Four of our stations intrcl:‘duced high-
definition local news in 2007, including
WFLA in Tampa, WSL5 in!Roanoke Va.,
WSPA in Greenwlle/Spartanburg SC,
and WWTM in Blrmlngham Ala. A fifth,
WCMH in Columbus, Ohgo will launch
in the first quarter 2008.|
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Secondary Stations

Media General has launched 16 secondary digital

channels such as 24/7 weather channeis, CW-Plus
and MyTV. These secondary channels have begun
to generate new revenues.

Local Programs

We are producing more non-news programming at
several of our stations, including a daily moming
variety show called Daytime in Tampa. In 2007,
WSPA in Greenville/Spartanburg launched a live
morning talk show, Your Carofing, and it quickly

won its time period.
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Television Web Sites

We made great progress

in 2007 in developing our
television Web sites. With
broadband connections now
pervasive, our stations’ video
offerings and strong local

reputations for breaking news

and weather yield powerful
competitive advantages.

Our TV Web sites increasingly

We monetize the
trafficon our TV
Web sites by selling
sponsorships and
contextually-relevant
display advertising.

offer breaking news, weather
and traffic alerts and special
video reports. We aiso run
extended video from on-air
stories and promote this
feature to our viewers. Many
provide Web-exclusive news
programs, and others stream
their regular newscasts live.
Our television stations also
leverage their meteorology
resources with extended
online weather reports.

Several stations post Web-
casts every weekday morning

NG

New NBC Stations

We are on target to realize our projected

$3 million in operating synergies at our four new
NBC stations in 2008, The sales teams at those
stations have been refocused on developing
local advertiser relationships. We also brought
these stations inte our central traffic system,
which optimizes inventory management and
pricing. New brand identities, based on market
research, should further strengthen the market

position of these stations.

and afternoon, which provide
a brief rundown of the stories
the station is working on

for the noon and evening
newscasts.

Targeted placement and
on-demand delivery open
doors to new classes of
smaller advertisers who have
not previously used broadcast
television in their marketing
efforts. Fifteen of our stations
now host Classified sections,
where visitors can search, in
one place, all the ads from all
the publications in a market.




Centralization

We continue to centralize many
functions for our television
stations and in 2007 completed
Centralized Master Control for our
nine NBC stations. We also created
a new Central Graphics operation.

Sharpening our image with our
audience is one of the key pur-
poses for the new Central Graphics
operation. Media General is the
first in the industry to take the
concept of a central graphics hub
beyond serving news needs to also
include graphics for marketing and
sales purposes.

A new graphics center
improves the quality of

our on-air content, reduces
labor expense, and provides
services that our small
stations have never been

able to justify.

Our stations now have access to
unparalleled service by having
artists available 24/7. Our research
shows high-quality graphics, maps
and animations help our reporters
and producers explain issues and
give more relevance to stories for
our viewers. The central operation
enables our stations to devote
more time to the content of their
newscasts.

By early 2008, central graphics
was serving five stations and we
expect to complete the launch to
all stations by the second quarter.

At the new Central Graphics operation are Emily Hall,

b fu n Cti ons f0r our Matt Harrington and Philip Mathers (backgiound).
evision stations.
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Targeted

Print

We're using consumer research to better target the content
of our newspapers to align with reader interests.

We continue to align our
newspapers content more

directly w1th reader inter-

ests as identified through
research. Combined with our
“Web-First” process, we will
increase our total audience
and provide advertisers with
optimum opportunities to

reach their target consumers,

Qur newspapers are using
non-traditional narrative
techniques such as question-
and-answer formats to make
stories more accessible and
inviting. Also, the writing
style for many stories is more
conversational, and we have
shifted to easier-to-read
graphical formats. We also

have stepped up the use of
color in more sections, and we
are devoting special attention
to our Sunday newspapers.

In addition to content
improvements, we are making
our front pages mere enticing
and we have launched single-
copy sales promotions with
retail stores and restaurants.

As part of our efforts to
increase total audience and
market share, we have also
introduced a number of spe-
cialty print products targeted
to specific demographic,
geographic and topical

communities of interests.
Successful products and ideas
in one market are often easily
replicated in other markets.

Our advertising representa-
tives are better trained than
ever, and we have armed
them with sophisticated tools
to generate new business
from existing and new
advertisers. We also have
adopted a recruiting system
that identifies people more
likely to succeed in sales.
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Spanish Language
Products

Media General has made
measurable progress in
developing new products and
services in a changing environ-
ment. One large demographic
community of interest is
Spanish-speaking people.

We have launched successful
products in our three markets
with the largest Hispanic
populations - Tampa, North-
ern Virginia and Richmond.

In Tampa, we launched a
weekly Spanish-language
newspaper in 2005, and it is
now the largest circulated
Hispanic publication in that
market at 60,000 copies. The
publication has experienced
solid revenue growth, up 11%
in 2007. We also cperate a
Web site and provide Spanish
news broadcasts in Tampa.

In 2007, Tampa also intro-
duced a Quincearniera Guide,
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tailored toward 15-year-cld
girls in the Hispanic communi-
ty preparing for the ceremony
marking their transition into
adulthood. This product has
received wide approval from
the Hispanic community, and
we partnered with the Florida
Bridal Guide to offer joint
advertising packages.

Women’s Products

In October 2007, we launched a distinctive
monthly women's publication called skirtfin
Richmond. With strong retail advertiser support,
skirt! posted a profitin its second issue. We will
launch in Tampay/5t. Petersburg, Birmingham,
Ala,, and Winston-Salem in 2008, We produce
other wormen's titles in many markets.

Other Interests

HOME

Swimming Pools

Other new products target
the sports/outdoors, health
& fitness, home & garden,
lifestyle, travel, education
and religious interests of
our audiences.
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Hyper-local

Tampa led the way at Media
General with hyper-local print
and companion online products
that serve geographic target
audiences, namely suburban
neighborhoods. These expand
our total audience and extend our
reach for advertisers.

In addition to The Tampa Tribune,
we publish two smaller daily and
17 weekly newspapers in the
Tampa market. In mid-2007, The
Tampa Tribune folded the content
of its zoned sections into these
community newspapers and gave
each an interactive Web site. This
provides better, deeper hyper-
local coverage and better connects
advertisers to their targets.

We are creating even
deeper community
connections with our
hyper-local weekly
newspapers and their
companion Web sites.

Ourresearch found that 8-of-10
readers rate our community week-
lies good-to-excellent and that
these enhanced papers are widely
read. Qur community Web site
traffic increased dramatically in
2007 with overall community Web
site page views up nearly 100%
since we began this approach in
April 2007. Page views were up
nearly 70% year-over-year.

Virtually all our newspaper mar-
kets also use the Tampa model to
develop hyper-local products. In
Richmond, for example, in addition
to our metro daily the Richmond
Times-Dispatch, we publish four
suburban weeklies with associated
Web sites.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion addresses the principal factors affecting the Com-
pany's financial condition and operations during the past three years
and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and the Five-Year Financial Summary found elsewhere in
this report.

QVERVIEW

The Company is a diversified communications company located
primarity in the southeastern United States. Its mission is to be the
leading provider of high-quality news, information and entertainment
in the Southeast by continually building its position of strength in stra-
tegically located markets. The Company is commitied to providing
excellent local content in growth markets over muttiple platforms, to
continually devetoping new products and services that will stimulate
audience and revenue growth, and to successfully executing its con-
vergence strategy through diversification, forging new partnerships,
and through strategic pians to sell non-core assets and operations.
The Company implements its strategy and manages its operations
through three business segments: Publishing, Broadcast and Inter-
active Media. The Company owns 25 daily newspapers and more
than 150 other publications, 20 network-affiliated television stations
{excluding discontinued operations), and it operates more than 75 on-
line enterprises.

Toward the latter part of 2007, the Company set in motion sev-
eral plans which will allow it to reduce debt, strengthen its balance
sheet and focus on its core business as a pure media company. The
Company entered into an agreement {along with its other two equal
partners) to sell its one-third ownership stake in SP Newsprint to White
Birch Paper Company. The sale is expected to be completed in March
or April of 2008 and will eliminate the earnings volatility the Company
has experienced in recent years due to the highly cyclical nature of
newsprint prices. Additionally, the Company has initiated a plan to
divest three of its television stations and their asscciated websites lo-
cated in mid-sized markets in the Southeastern United States. These
stations are WMBB in Panama City, Florida, KALB/NALB in Alexandria,
Louisiana, and WNEG in Toccoa, Georgia {an independent satellite
station of WSPA in Spartanburg, South Caroling). The Company is
also entertaining bids for two other stations (WCW.J in Jacksonville,
Florida and WTVQ in Lexington, Kentucky) but plans to sell these two
stations were not sufficientty advanced at year-end to characterize
these assets as held for sale. These divestitures would altow for further
debt reduction, while helping to position the Company to pursue future
growth opportunities.

The Company seized strategic opportunities in 2006 which in-
cluded the acquisition of four NBC owned and operated television
stations as well as 1he disposition of several CBS stations in markets
which were not strategically aligned with the Company’s vision. The
stations acquired included: WNCN in Raleigh, North Carolina; WCMH
in Columbus, Ohio; WVTM in Birmingham, Alabama; and WJAR in
Providence, Bhode Island. This acquisition expanded the Company's
southeastern footprint to include the key Raleigh-Durham market, The
divested stations included: KWCH in Wichita, Kansas (including that
station's three satellitasy; WIAT in Birmingham, Alabama (as agreed
upon when granted FCC approval for the purchase of WVTM in Bir-
mingham); WDEF in Chattancoga, Tennessee; and KIMT in Mason
City, lowa.

Media General relies heavily on advertising from all three of its seg-
ments as its primary source of ravenue. The distribution of advertising
revenues in the United States continues to shift among numerous es-
tablished media, as well as many new entranis, resulting in increased
competition. While Internet advertising growth rates have been the
highest of ali media, the growth is from a relatively small base. The
Company's Interactive Media Division has benefited from this trend.

posting revenue increases of 33% in each of the last two years. The
Company recognizes the chalienges facing its Publishing Divigion not
anly from Internet competition, but also from structural changes in
:ndustries that have historically been major purchasers of print adver-
tising, from a generally soft economy and from a sharp downturn in
Florida’s economy which significantly impacts the Company's largest
market (the Tampa Bay region). While speculation continues to exist
regarding the pace and intensity of a shift away from traditional print
advertising, the Company has taken steps 1o reposition its newspapers
to embrace this change. The Interactive Media, Publishing and Broad-
cast Divisions have teamed together to create a “Web-First” approach
to news reporting which provides an immediate platiorm for breaking
news and positions the Interactive Media Division for strong long-term
growth. Additionally, the Company continues to focus on creating
ways to grow revenues by diversifying its traditional businesses, ac-
quiring a rapidly growing advergaming enterprise, introducing speciatty
print products targeted to specific demographics, and partnering with
Yahoo! and a consortium of Publishing companies that represent more
than 500 newspapers in the online classified employment arena.

Advertising at the Broadcast Division can be significantly impacted
by events like the Qlympics and the Super Bowl, as well as national
and statewide political races which generate additional advertising dol-
lars. These events, or their absence in a given year, cause a certain
cyclicality in the Company's Broadcast revenues as even-numbered
years tend to increase due to an influx of Political revenues and Olym-
pics advertising. The following graph shows Political advertising as
a percentage of total time sales, clearly demonstrating how Political
advertising contributes to this cyclicatity.

Political Advertising Revenues as a Percentage of
Total Broadcast Time Sales
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Accordingly, 2007 yielded predictably lower Political advertising
revenues, which was in sharp contrast to 2006 as it reaped the ben-
efits of almost $50 million in Political advertising revenues (including
%20 million frorm the newly acquired NBG stations).

In December 2007, the Federal Communications Commission
(FCC) modified its cross-ownership rule which presumptively will allow
a company to own a newspaper and broadcast station in the largest
twenty U.S. markets if certain standards are met. Additionally, the FCC
granted permanent waivers to the Company’s convergence partner-
ship in Tampa and to its existing comimon ownership of newspapers
and television stations in four smaller markets where Media General
has implemented convergence. The Company has never wavered in
its belief that cross-ownership translates into better local television and
higher-quality news for communities of all sizes.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with gen-
erally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP)
requires that management make various estimates and assumptions
that have an impact on the assets, labilities, revenues, and expenses
reported. The Company considers an accounting estimate 1o be criti-
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cal if that estimate requires assumptions be made about matters that
were uncertain at the time the accounting estimate was made, and if
changes in the estimate (which are reasonabily likely to occur from peri-
od to period)} would have a material impact on the Company's financial
condition or results of operations. The Audit Committeg of the Board
of Directors has reviewed the development, selection and disclosure
of these critical accounting estimates. While actual results could differ
from accounting estimates, the Company's most critical accounting
estimates and assumptions are in the following areas:

Intangible assets

The Company reviews the carmying values of both goodwill and
other identified intangible assets, including FCC licenses, in the fourth
quarter each year, or earlier if events indicate impairment may have
arisen, utilizing discounted cash flow models. The preparation of such
discounted future operating cash flow analyses requires significant
rmanagement judgment with respect to operating profit growth rates,
appropriate discount rates, and residual values. The fourth-quarter
2007 tests indicated no impairment. However, since the estimated fair
values in the discounted cash flow model are subject to change based
on the Company's performance and overall market conditions, future
impairment charges are possible.

Pension plans and postretirement bengfits

The determination of the liabilities and cost of the Company’s pen-
sion and other postretirement plans requires the use of assumptions.
The actuarial assumptions used in the Company's pension and post-
retirement reporting are reviewed annually with independent actuaries
and compared with external benchmarks, historical trends, and the
Company's own experience to determine that its assumptions are rea-
sonable. The assumptions used in developing the required estimates
include the following key factors:

+  Discount rates

*  Expected return on plan assets

e Salary growth

¢ Mortality rates

*  Health care cost trends

*  Retirement rates

*  Expected contributions

A one percentage-point ¢hange in the expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets would have resulted in a change in pension
expense for 2007 of approximately $2.9 million. A one percentage-
point change in the discount rate would have raised or lowered by
approximately $5 milion the plans’ 2007 expense and would have
changed the plans’ projected obligations by approximately $85 million
as of the end of 2007. Effective for fiscal 2007, the Company rede-
signed its defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans
and also added certain new employee benefit programs. The changes
included: freezing the service accrual in the defined benefit retirement
plan for existing employees (while closing this plan to new employees),
increasing the maximum company match in the 401(k) defined contri-
bution plan to 5% from 4% of an employee’s eamings, adding a profit
sharing feature to the 40i(k} plan, and establishing new retiree medi-
cal savings accounts. The Company took these steps to reduce the
volatility of future pension expense and contributions while continuing
to offer competitive retirement benefits to its employees.

Self-insurance liabilities

The Cempany self-insures for certain medical and disability ben-
efits, workers' compensation costs, and automobile and general li-
ahility claims with specified stop-loss provisions for high-dollar claims.
The Company estimates the liabilities for these items (approximately
$19 million at December 30, 2007) based on historical experience and
advice from actuaries and claim administrators. Actual claims experi-

ence as well as changes in health care cost trends could resuit in the
Company's eventual cost differing from the estimate.

Income taxes
The Company files indome tax returns with varicus state tax ju-
risdictions in addition to the Internal Revenue Service and is regularly

audited by both federal arlLd state tax agencies. From time to time,

those audits may result in
considered the alternative i
various tax agencies and d
its earnings as a resuit of t
Interpretation No. 48, Accol

roposed adjustments. The Company has

hterpretations that may be assumed by the

oes not anticipate any material impact on

he various audits. The Company adopted

nting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an

interpretation of FASE Stat

ment No. 109, in the first quarter of 2007.

This interpretation requires fhat incorme tax positions recognized in an
entity's tax returns have a fnore-likely-than-not chance of being sus-
{ained prior to recording the related tax benefit in the financial state-
ments. If subsequent inforrhation becomes available that changes the
more-likely-than-not assesgment of either a previcusly unrecognized
or recognized tax benefit, the corresponding tax benefit or expense
would be recorded in the period in which the information becomes
available.

The Company records |income tax expense and liabilities in ac-
cordance with SFAS No. 108, Accounting for Income Taxes, under
which deferred tax assets gnd liabilities are recorded for the differing
treatments of various items ¢f income and expense for financial report-
ing versus tax reporting puposes. The Company bases its estimate
of those deferred tax assets|and liabilities on current tax laws and rates
as well as expected future ilcome. Therefare, any significant changes
in enacted federal and state tax laws or in expected future earnings
might impact income tax eqpense and deferred tax assets and liabili-
ties.

Summary

Management believes,
suppiemented by the expert
including actuaries and acc

given current facts and circumstances,
5e and concurrence of external resources,
puntants, that its estimates and assump-

tions are reasonable and are
further beligves that the as

in accordance with GAAR. Management
mptions and estimates actually used in

the financial statements, takgn as a whole, represent the most appro-
priate choices from among feasonably possible alternatives and fairly
present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the Comparty. Management will continue to discuss key estimates
with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income

The Company recorded|net income of $11 milion in 2007, $79
million in 2006, and a net logs of $243 million in 2005. In order to fa-
cilitate a meaningful comparigon of results for the last three years, sev-
eral items merit separate consideration. As discussed previously, the
Company initiated a plan toward the end of 2007 to divest three of its
television stations; since the [Company does not expect to recover its
carrying value less its costs tp sell, the Company accrued an after-tax
loss of $2 million related to these divestitures. Additionally, the Com-
pany sold several CBS statigns in 2006 resulting in an after-tax gain
of $11 million. The resuilts of the sold stations and those currently held
for sale {as well as their assofiated web sites) have been reported as
discontinued cperations for &l years presented. The remainder of this
discussion focuses only on rgsults from continuing operations. Unless
otherwise indicated, results of the four NBC stations acquired in the
third quarter of 2006 are alsd excluded to provide relevant year-over-
year comparisons. See Notd 2 for a detailed discussion of the Com-
pany's 2007 and 2006 acquisitions and divestitures. The Company
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also entered into an agreement to sell its one-third investment share in
SP Newsprint (SPNC) to White Birch Paper Company (see Note 4 for
a detailed discussion); the Company recognized an approximate loss
of $15 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 due to sale-related costs
and write-downs as the Company's book basis in SPNC was higher
than the expected net proceeds. The loss related to the sale of SPNG
was more than offset by a $17.6 million gain recorded on an insurance
settlement related to a 2007 fire at the Company’s Richmond Times-
Dispatch printing plant (see Note 11 for a detailed discussicn). Addi-
tionally, fiscal 2006 included an extra (53rd) week, the estimated effect
of which impacts several comparisons in the following analysis. This
extra week contributed approximately $18 million in revenues and $2.5
million to net income and, accordingly, influenced virtually all of the
year-over-comparisons. Results for 2005 were substantially impacted
by the adoption of EITF Topic D-108, Use of the Residual Method to
Value Acquired Assets Other Than Goodwill, which requires the use
of a direct method for valuing all acquired intangible assets other than
goodwil. The direct methed resulted in recording a cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle charge of $325.5 million ($13.63
per diluted share). See Note 3 for a full discussion of this accounting
change. Also influencing 2005 results was the sale of the Cormpany’s
20% interest in The Denver Post Company to MediaNews Group, In¢.,
which resulted in an after-tax gain of $19.4 milion ($0.8% per diluted
share).

Income in 2007 from continuing cperations fell $52.8 milion (84 %)
from 20086. Three factors contributed almost equally to the year-over-
year downtum. First, Broadcast Divisicn operating profits (including
the NBC stations acquired in the third quarter of 2006) declined $29.5
million (319%)j reflecting substantially reduced political advertising in this
odd-numbered year. Second, Publishing Division operating profits fell
more than $29 million (24%) as all major advertising categories were
down from the prior year due in large part to a proncunced economic
downturn in Florida’s economy. Third, excluding the sale-related costs
and write-downs associated with SP Newsprint, the Company's share
of SPNC's underlying operating results produced a $26 million adverse
turnaround, primarily reflecting the impact of lower newsprint prices
and higher raw material costs. Also impacting the first half of the year
was higher interast expense as a result of increased debt levels associ-
ated with the acquisition of the NBC stations.

Excluding the Denver gain, income in 2C06 from continuing opera-
tions before the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
rose $2.6 million (4.4%,) over 2005, Factors which fueled this increase
included a 53% rise in Broadcast operating income {including the NBC
stations acquired in mid-2008) due to vigorous Political advertising, a
nine-fold increase in the Company's share of SPNC’s results (primar-
ily attributable 1o higher newsprint selling prices), and a 53rd week in
the year which accounted for approximately $2.5 million in additional
income. Convarsely, several items served to temper these increases
including a 65% rise in interest expense and a 12% increase in intan-
gibles amortization, both overwhelmingly dug to the acquisition of the
NBC stations. The Publishing Division experienced a 7.5% decline in
operating profits as slightly higher advertising revenues were unabie
to offset higher divisional expenses. Alsc negatively impacting results
was $5.6 million of non-cash stock option expense recordsed in 2006
as a result of the required adoption of Statement 123(R) (see Note 8
for a complete discussion of the adopticn).

Publishing

Operating income for the Publishing Division decreased $29.1 mil-
lion in 2007 from the prior year despite successful cost containment
measures which appreciably mitigated a $56.4 million decline in rev-
enues (including approximately $10.5 million of revenues associated
with the extra wesk in 2008). As shown in the following chart, Classi-
fied advertising suffered the largest portion of the revenue decline as

employment, automotive and real estate advertising struggled at most
locations. The Tampa market contributed more than 8C% of the Clas-
sified reduction as the Company's largest market continued to struggle
due to the real estate-induced, sharp downturn in Florida's economy.
The current year’s unfavorable market conditions in the Tampa Bay
region were amplified because they followed several years of booming
growth in that area. Retail revenues were down in 2007 due to the
additional week in 2006 and to lower advertising levels in the home
improvement and furnishing categories. While the National revenue
decline presented in the chart below was less severa than other ad-
sertising categories, the decrease was overwhelmingly attributable o
the current depressed conditions in the Tampa market {driven by weak
automotive and pharmacettical advertising as well as the impact of
the extra week in 2006).

Publishing Advertising Revenues by Category
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The Company reacted to the challenging advertising environment
by implemeniting a performance improvement plan to better align ex-
penses with the reduced revenue environment by consolidating certain
functions and outsourcing others, resulting in the elimination of over
200 authorized positions, The Division's 2007 year-to-date results
included pretax charges of approximately $2.3 millicn for severance
costs related to this realignment. In addition, the Division has imple-
mented several sales initiatives to stimulate Classified advertising sales
and continues to aggressively manage its discretionary spending.

Excluding the above-mentioned severance costs, Publishing Divi-
sion operating expenses decreased $29.6 milion in 2007 (which in-
cluded approximately $8 million of additional expense as a result of
the extra week in 2006). Newsprint costs were down $16.1 millicn
due to reduced consumption as a result of switching to lighter weight
newsprint, concerted consarvation efforts and decreased advertising
and circulation volumes, as well as to lower average newsprint prices
which were down $58 per short ton. A 5% decrease in employee ben-
efits and compensation costs also contributed to the overall expense
reduction, due in large part to lower retirement and healthcare costs,
a decrease in advertising commissions, and to a lesser degree, the
petformance improvement plan.

In 2005 excluding the Denver gain, operating income for the
Publishing Division was down $9.6 milicn as compared to 2005. A
$13.3 million increase in revenues (including approximately $10.5 mil-
lion associated with the 53rd week in 2006) was more than offset by
higher operating expenses. Classified revenues remained the Divi-
sion's growth engine, with Retail advertising developing into a close
contender. Due in large part to the strengih of these two advertis-
ing categories, 2008 marked the fourth consecutive year in which the
Division posted year-over-year growth in overall revenues. Classified
advertising revenues rose 4.4% and contributed 60% of the total ad-
vertising growth due primarily to explosive real estate advertising and
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the extra week. Retail advertising improved nearly 4% and reflected
new revenue initiatives and consistent growth in several categories,
particularly home improvement, as well as the extra week, Conversely,
National advertising labored due 10 weakness In the telecommunica-
tions category {(which spililed over from 2005) and in the automotive
category. Circulation revenues fell below the prior-year level due to a
change in wholesale rates to independent carriers in some markets,
for which there was a corresponding expense decrease, as well as to
small volume declines.

Publishing Division operating expenses increased $22.7 million in
2006 (which included approximately $8 milion of additional expense
associated with the 53rd week) over the previous year. A 4.5% rise in
compensation and employee benefit costs accounted for the largest
paortion of this increase due to the extra week and to normal salary in-
creases combined with higher retirement costs. Despite 2 leveling off
of newsprint prices for the latter half of 2008, newsprint expense was
up 4.6% in the ysar as average newsprint prices increased $74 per
short ton over 2005’ average price. Reduced newsprint consumption
due to switching to lighter weight newsprint, concerted conservation
efforts and decreased circulation volumes helped to significantly offset
these higher newsprint prices as well as the impact of the extra week.
Additionally, depreciation and amortization expense rose 2.5% in 2006
as a result of two new printing facilities and a new advertising system,
as well as accelerated depreciation related to the reduction of web-
widths on printing presses.

Broadcast

Broadcast results for all of 2007 and the second half of 2008 in-
cluded the four NBC stations which the Company acquired at the be-
ginning of the third quarter of 2006. In the second half of 2008, these
stations contributed revenues in excess of $60 million due to extremsly
strong Political races particularly in Columbus, Chio and Providence,
Rhode Island. tn 2007, revenues for the full year rose to $90 mil-
lion but profits declined by two-thirds as lower NBC primetime ratings
combined with a significant decline in Political advertising in this odd-
numbered year. As mentioned earlier, for purposes of the remainder
of this discussion and for the chart that follows, results of these NBC
stations and all discontinued operations are excluded.

Broadcast operating income decreased $16.7 million in 2007 from
the prior year primarily due to a $14.9 million decrease in revenues (in-
cluding approximately $5.7 million relating to the extra week in 20086).
A predictable, but nonetheless large, decline in Political advertising
accounted for the majority of the Divisicn's lower revenues. As illus-
trated in the foltowing chart, National advertising revenues have dem-
onstrated consistency and steadfast growth over the past two years
primarily on the strength of the telecommunications category. In 2007,
Local time sales were slightly below the 2006 level due to restrained
automotive spending as dealers remained cautious, but this category
began to regain a foothold by the close of the year on strong grocery
store advertising. There was no surprise surrounding the mere than
70% decline in Political time sales in this off-election year; political rev-
enues generated from Presidential primaries, gubernatorial races and
issue advertising curbed what could have been an even larger descent
from the prior year.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Broadcast Advertising Revenues by Category
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predominantly by a surge irj Political advertising, significantly outpaced
higher operating expenses.| Advertising revenues rose in all categeries
in 2006 over 2005. Politigal advertising revenues contributed nearly
85% of the Division's increase in overall advertising time sales (up
12.2%) as campaign spending was going full throttle for gubernatorial,
Senate, House, and state and local races in the election year, Despite
the advertising doflars beipg channeled into Political advertising in
2008, Local and National garnered a respectable share of advertising
revenues as they showed improvement on the strength of the telecom-
munications and services cplegories.

Broadcast Division operating expenses increased $12,7 million in
2006 over 2005 (including [approximately $4 millicn of additional ex-
pense associated with the 53rd week). The primary factor driving the
increase was higher employee compensation and benefit costs which
grew approximately 6.5% due to merit pay raises and increased sales
commissicns associated wikh new business, including the extra week.
Programming costs were up more than 10% due in large part to the
extra week and higher syndication costs. Another dynamic which
contributed to the Division'g higher expense level was the continuation
of its government-mandatgd conversion to broadcast high definition
television, which translated into increased depreciation on the new
equipment and higher electricity costs associated with operating the
new transmitters and other digital equipment.
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Interactive Media

The 2006 purchase of four NBC television stations included their
associated websites. These websites contributed revenues of $1.8
million in 2007 and $1 million in 2008. For purposes of the remainder
of this discussion and for the chart that follows, results from both the
acquired NBC websites as well as the discontinued website opera-
tions are excluded. The primary components comprising the Interac-
tive Media Division are the website group associated with newspapers
and television stations (the online group), the advergaming business
which was purchased in the third quarter of 2005 (Blockdot), and in-
teractive investments. Net write-downs of an interactive investment
totaled $3.4 million in 2007 and $.7 milion in 2006 and have been
excluded for purposes of the divisional discussion that follows. This in-
vestment in a company that produces interactive entertainment and to
which the Company has licensed proprietary game content was writ-
ten down to reflect the extended period the stock price of this publicly
traded security has been below the Company's carrying value. Also
of note, the 53rd week in 2006 generated $.3 millicn in revenues, but
also spawned a $.2 milion operating loss in that period as the result
of higher expenses.

In 2007, absent the above-mentioned net write-down, the Division
generated robust double-digit revenue growth (up 32% from 2006)
and reduced its operating loss by 54% from the prior year as revenue
growth outpaced higher expenses. Blockdot was an instrumental fac-
tor in the Division's success as Blockdot transformed an operating loss
of $1.2 million in 2006 into operating profits of $2.6 million in 2007.
IMD revenues increased $8.3 million with two-thirds of that growth
coming from Blockdot, where advergaming revenues tripled. The re-
maining divisional revenue growth was generated by a 419% increase
in Local online advertising as banners and sponsorships showed solid
growth, combined with National/Regicnal onling revenues that more
than doubled as strengthening relationships with an expanding net-
work of national agencies translated into more advertisers. As illus-
trated by the following chart, advertising revenues rose in all categories
over the past two years with the exception of Classified advertising
which declined 7% in 2007 from the prior year. Online Classified ad-
vertising, wherg customers pay an additional fee to have their clas-
sified advertisement placed online simultaneously with its publication
in the newspaper, has historically been the backbone of the Division
and produced strong revenue growth. However, IMD’s online Classi-
fied advertising is directly impacted by Classified performance in the
Publishing Division and has suffered comparably, particularly because
of Florida's struggling economy. Initial revenues from the Company’s
strategic alliance with Yahoo!HotJobs helped mitigate the overall de-
cline in online Classified advertising.

Interactive Media Advertising Revenues by Category
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IMD’s operating expense increased $6.6 million in 2007 compared
to 2006 primarily reflecting higher employee compensation and ben-
efits expense due to additional staffing, increased commissions, and
annual salary increases due to a focus on recruiting, as well as retain-
ing, talented sales personnel. The Division also incurred expenses
related 1o its Yahoo!HotJobs agreement that were not present a year
ago.
In 20086, absent the aforementioned write-down of i{s investment,
the Division reduced its operating loss by 16.6% as compared to
2005. Results of its online group improved significantly in that same
period, while Blockdot's operating loss rose slightly over the prior year.
Divisional revenues grew by 28% in 2006 with the online group sup-
plying the lion's share of the year-over-year improvement. Classified
advertising rose more than 15% in 2006 and remained the foundation
for the Division's revenue improvement in 2006 as upsell arrangements
and other classified products continued to thrive. IMD's operating ex-
penses were up $5.1 million in the year, predominantly resulting from
higher employee compensation and benefits expense due to additional
staffing in key areas, higher sales-related commissions {commensu-
rate with higher revenues) and annual salary increases. Additionally,
higher costs were incured as the Division expanded its advergaming
business by investing in its infrastructure and by attracting, as well as
retaining, high-quality employees.

The Interactive Media Division remains focused on positioning it-
self for strong long-term growth, by increasing visitor and page-view
growth, creating a dynamic cnline presence across all the Company's
websites, and generating revenue growth with expanded product
and service offerings. The Division continues to seek opportunities to
broaden its online product portfolio to meet the growing needs of its
advertisers. Its strategic alliance with Yahoo! and a consortiumn of over
500 newspapers creates both content and distribution opportunities
and provides more effective advertising solutions to customers.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $11.1 miltion in 2007 from the prior
year cue entirely to an increase in average debt outstanding of $200
million as a result of additional borrowings associated with the acquisi-
tion of the four NBC stations which were purchased at the beginning
of the third quarter of 20086.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company entered into three inter-
est rate swaps (where it pays a fixed rate and receives a floating rate)
to manage interest cost and cash flows associated with variable inter-
est rates, primarily short-term changes in LIBOR, not to trade such
instruments for profit or loss. These interest rate swaps are cash fiow
hedges with notional amounts totaling $300 million; swaps with no-
tional amounts of $100 mitlion will mature in 2009, and $200 miflion
will mature in 2011. Changes in cash flows of the interest rate swaps
offset changes in the interest payments on the Company's $300 mil-
lion bank term loan. These swaps effectively convert the Company's
variable rate bank term loan te fixed rate debt with a weighted average
interest rate approximating 6.4% at December 30, 2007.

Income taxes

The Company's effective tax rate on income from continuing op-
erations was approximately 32%, 37% and 38% in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The sharp reduction in the 2007 rate was due
primarily to the relatively greater impact that favorable permanent dif-
ferences (book versus tax) had on the current year's reduced pre-tax
income. Additionally, the Company recognized a tax benefit of $786
thousand in the third quarter of 2007 to record the favorable resolution
of an outstanding state income tax assessment. The 2006 tax rate
was down slightly from 2005 primarily due to increased fuel credits
generated by SP Newsprint as well as the absence of the gain from
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the 2005 sale of the Company’s 20% interest in Denver, which had a
relatively higher effective rate.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No.
48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109 at the beginning of fiscal 2007. The Com-
pany recognized an approximate $4.9 million net increase in the liability
for uncertain tax posttions, which was accounted for as a reduction of
retained earnings, as of January 1, 2007. See Note 7 for a complete
discussion of the adoption of this standard.

LIQUIDITY

The Company has a $1 billion revolving credit facility and a $300
mitlion variable bank term loan agreement (together the “Facilities”). As
shown in the following table, at the end of 2C07 there were borrowings
of $595 million outstanding under the revolving credit facility and $300
million outstanding under the term loan. The Facilities have both inter-
est coverage and teverage ratio covenants. These covenants, which
involve debt levels, interest expense, and a rolling four-quarter calcula-
tion of EBITDA {a measure of cash earnings as defined in the revolv-
ing credit agreement}, can affect the Company’s maximum borrowing
capacity {(approximately $1.1 bilion at December 30, 2007} allowed by
the Facilities. Due to the reduced operating resuits during 2007, in the
fourth quarter, the Company amended certain provisions of its Facili-
ties to increase the maximum teverage ratio covenant and reduce the
minimum interest ratio covenant for a period of thres fiscal quarters.
The amendment also modified the circumstances under which certain
subsidiary guarantess would be in place. The Company was in com-
pliance with all covenants throughout the year and expects to remain
in compliance going forward.

In the first quarter of 2007, the Company repaid, at maturity, $95
million in debt that existed as the result of consolidating certain variable
interest entities in which the Company had controlling financial interest
by virtue of certain real property leases. At that time, the Cocmpany

{in millions)
Contractual obligations’ Total
Long-term debt:?
Revolving credit facility % 595.0
Term loan facility 300.0
Other 286
Operating leases® 36.7
Broadcast film rights* 70.4
Estimated benefit payments from Company assets® 69.7
Purchase obligations?® 204.7
Total specified cbligations $ 127941

$

purchased the facilities by bising existing capacity under its revolving
credit facility.

The Company expects het cash flows over the next year to provide
it with sufficient resources tp manage working capital needs, pay divi-
dends, and finance capital|expenditures. Major capital expenditures
in 2008 will include expansion of the Company’s Florence newspaper
building to include a television studio for the Company’s Myrtle Beach
station which will create shared space to facilitate stronger conver-
gence in that market, as well as press and production projects at the
Company’s FPublishing opefations in Richmond, Winston-Salem and
Lynchburg.

The Company typically penerates strong net cash from operations
(ranging from $102 million to $158 million over the last five years). In
2007, the Company used gash generated from operating activities to
repurchase stock for $48.1 milion, to make capital expenditures of
$78.1 million, to pay dividands to stockholders of $21.2 million and
to reduce debt by $18.8 milion. The Company’s philosophy is to use
excess cash flow to repay |[debt, which has the effect of strengthen-
ing the balance sheet. With the absence of major acquisitions from
2001 to 2004, the Company aggressively reduced debt in those years.
The Company expects to complete the sale of its one-third ownership
stake in SP Newsprint in March or April of 2008, generating proceeds
between $37 million to $40 million which will be used for debt repay-
ment. Net proceeds from the three held-for-sale stations (which arg
currently being reported ag discontinued operations), would also be
used to reduce debt. A stfonger balance sheet enhances the Com-
pany’s ability to qualify for favorable terms under its existing revolving
credit facility, negotiate beneficial terms for new borrowing facilities,
and produces the financial flexihbility to take advantage of attractive
strategic opportunities.

The Company does not have material off-balance sheet arrange-
ments. The table that folloyws shows leng-term debt and other speci-
fied obligations of the Comppany:

Payments Due By |[Periods

200p 2011 2013 and

2008 201p 2012 beyond
_ $ - $ 5950 3 -

- - 300.0 -

25 0.1 - -
71 11.p 8.2 8.8
161 398 141 1.4
53 11.p 13.7 391
133.9 46.p 19.2 54
163.9 3 1098 $ 9502 $ 55.7

' As disclosed in Note 7, the Company had a non-current liability for uncertain tax positions of approximately $15.1 million at December 30, 2007. The
Company cannot reasonably estimate the amount or period in whigh the ultimate settlement of these uncertain tax positions will occur, therefore the

contractual obligations table excludes this liability.

2 The Company has the legai right to prepay its fong-term debt without penalty; accordingly no future interest expgnse has been included.

3 Minimum rental commitments under noncancelable lease terms in excess ¢f ong year.

4 Broadcast film rights inciude both recorded short-term and long-term liabilities for programs which have been preduced and unrecorded commitments to

purchase film rights which are not yet available for broadcast.

5 Actuarially estimated benefit payments under pension and other benefit plans expected to be funded directly frogn Company assets through 2017,

% Includes: 1) a¥l current liabilities not otherwise reported in the table that will require cash settlement, 2) significang purchase commitments for fixed assets, and

3} significant non-ordinary course contract-based obligations.
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CGUTLOOK FOR 2008

The Publishing Division is facing challenges which include a de-
pressed Florida economy that encompasses the Gompany's largest
market, increasing competition from numerous media, and rising
newsprint prices. However, the Broadcast Division looks forward
to the return of revenues from Political advertising and the Summer
Olympics which shoutd more than offset any Publishing declines. The
Publishing Division will aiso introduce a number of targeted specialty
products to supplement revenues from its traditional newspapers and
provide advertisers with more opportunities to reach their target cus-
tomers while exploring opportunities to further reduce expenses. The
Interactive Media Division expects its strong advergaming revenues to
assist the Division in achieving profitability by the end of 2008. The
2008 sale of SP Newsprint wil allow the Company to eliminate the
earnings volatility associated with the cyclicality of newsprint prices,
while reducing debt and strengthening its balance sheet. The sales of
certain television stations is expected to allow the Company to further
reduce debt. The Company looks forward to increasing long-term
shareholder value in 2008,

L B

Certain statements in this annual report that are not historical facts
are "forward-looking” statements, as that term is defined by the fed-
eral securities laws. Forward-fooking statements include staterments
related to pending transactions and contractual obligations, critical

accounting estimates and assumptions, the impact of new account-
ing standards and the infernet, and expectations regarding the effects
and timing of acquisitions and dispositions, the Yahoo! agreements,
newsprint prices, pension and post retirement pians, general advertis-
ing levels and political advertising fevels, and the effects of changes to
FCC regulations. Forward-locking statements, including those which
use words such as the Company “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,”
“estimates,” “intends,” “projects,” “plans,” *hopes” and similar words,
are made as of the date of this filing and are subfect to fisks and uncer-
tainties that could cause actual results 1o differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by such statements. The reader shotid under-
stand that it is not possible to predict or identify all risk factors. Conse-
quently, any such list should not be considered a compiete statement
of afl potential risks or uncertainties.

These forward-looking statements should be considered in light of
various important factors that could cause actual results to differ mate-
rially from estimates or projections including, without limitation: chang-
es in advertising demand, changes to pending accounting standards,
changes in circulation levels, changes in relationships with broadcast
networks, the availability and pricing of newsprint, fluctuations in interest
rates, the performance of pension plan assets, health care cost trends,
reguiatory rulings including those related to ERISA and tax law, natural
disasters, and the effects of acquisitions, investments and dispositions
on the Company's results of operations and its financial condition,
Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by forward-
looking staternents for a number or reasons including those described
in Part I, temm 1A, "Risk Factors” of the Company's Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON MEDIA GENERAL, INC.’S INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN

Management of Media General, Inc., (the Company) has assessed the Company’s internal control o
30, 2007, based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Co

CIAL REPORTING

er financial reporting as of December
htrol — Integrated Framework” issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management believes that as of
December 30, 2007, the Company's system of internal control over financial reporting was properly desjgned and operating effectively based

upon the specified criteria.

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal cont

ol over financial reporting. The Com-

pany’s internal control over financial reporting is comprised of policies, procedures and reports designed to provide reascnable assurance, to

the Company’s management and board of directors, that the financial reperting and the preparation of fing

heial statements for external purposes

has been handled in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Ipternal control over financial reporting

includes those poticies and procedures that (1} govern records to accurately and fairly reflect the transac

ions and dispositicns of assets of the

Company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prearation of financial statements in ac-

cordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Compa
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable safeguards

unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets.

Internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all misstatements.  Additionally,
controls to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may nct continue to operate at their current
personnel or in the Company's operating environment.

January 30, 2008

%ﬂ/ Wm (Hw(l Sk

Marshall N. Morton John A. Schauss
President and Vice President - Finance
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiat Officer
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effectivenass levels due to changes in

0. Reid Ashe Jr.
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Media General, Inc.

We have audited Media General, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2007, based on criteria established in
internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission {the COSO criteria).
Media General, Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on Media General, Inc.'s Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessery in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process dasigned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finan-
cial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external curposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal contral over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accouniing
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future pericds are subject to the risk thai controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our apinion, Media General, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 30,
2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consali-
dated balance sheets of Media General, Inc., as of December 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 30, 2007, and our report dated
January 30, 2008, expressed an ungualified opinion thereon.

éfvmt 4 MLLP
Richmond, Virginia

January 30, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Media General, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Media General, Inc., as of De
2006, and the related consolidated staterents of cperations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for ead
ended December 30, 2007, These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manageam
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oy
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disc|
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manage
financial statement prasentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our cpinicn.

In our opinion, the financial staterments referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the cq

General, Inc., at Decembar 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, and the consolidated results of its operat
three fiscal years in the period ended December 30, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted ac
As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, in 2007 the Company changed its method of ace

tions to comply with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accod
— an interpretation of FASB Staternent No. 109.

As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of aced
to comply with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123(R), Share-5a

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2007, based on criteria astablished in In

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report d4

unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanit ¥

Richmond, Virginia
January 30, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.

----------- D L EEPTEPTTPPPRPPEPTPPPPF

{In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues
Qperating costs:
Production
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on insurance recovery
T,otal operating costs
Operati:wg income
Other ir;come (expense):
Interest expense
Investment income (loss) - unconsolidated affiliates
Gain on sale of investment in The Denver Post Corporation
Other, net
T:[otal other income (expense) ‘

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle

Income taxes
e

Income from continuing operations befere cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations (net of income taxes of $1,506 in
2007, $3,150 in 2006 and $1,644 in 2005}

Net gain {loss) related to divestiture of discontinued operations {net of
income taxes of $722 in 2007 and $6,748 in 2008)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (net of income tax
benefit of $190,730)

Net income (loss)
I
Earnings (loss} per common share:

Income from continuing cperations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Income from discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per common share - assuming dilution:

Income from continuing cperations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Income from discontinued operations
Cumulative effact of change in accounting principle

Net income (loss)

Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements begin on page 34.

: December 30,“
2007

—
-

$ 932.1811
417.057‘
350,263

75,235

(17.604)
824,951
107,230/

Bewe=— v o

{(59,577)
{31,392)

ey

e e

B ”(93.276)‘

13,954
3,622

10,332,

Fiscal Years Ended

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
(53 weeks)

3 964,857 $ 860,393

413,588 365,765
345,179 313,553
£8.409 50,583
827,178 738,901
137,681 121,492
(48,505) (29,408)
10,598 1,119
- 33,270
323 2,454
(37,584) 7,435
100,097 128,927
37,012 49,088
63,085 79,839
4,928 2,572
11,029 -
- (325,453)

$ 79,042 $  (243,042)

$ 2.67 $ 3.39
0.68 0.11

- {13.83)

$ 3.35 $ {10.33)
$ 266 $ 3.34
0.67 0.13

- (13.63)

$ 3.32 $ (10.18)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.

ASSETS

(In thousands, except shares and per share amounts)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts 2007 - $6,073; 2006 - $6,519)
Inventories
Other
Assets of discontinued operations

Total current assets
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Other assets
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and eguipment

FCC licenses and other intangibles

Excess of cost over fair value of net identiflable assets of acquired businesses

Total assets

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments begin on page 34.

ﬁ:ember 30,
2007_

14,215
137,397

273,726
52,360

67,250

37,233
303,401
541,457

41,233

_ 668,792

925,058

2,471,066

6,690
53,860
61,564

December 31,
20086

E 11,929
136,930
9,650

41,092
64,519
264,120

84,854

70,696

37,340

292,440

548,504

26,747

(429,089)

475,942

686,157

923,559

$ 2505228




LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Ii,abilities:
Accounts payable
Accruad expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes payahle
Liabilities of discontinued operations

Totgl current liabilities
| Longltem] debt
Defarred ipcome taxes
Other Iiabil‘ities and deferred credits
Commitm?nts and contingencies (Note 11}

Stockholders” equity:

Preferrad stock (35 cumulative convertible), par value $5 per share: authorized 5,000,000 shares;
none outstanding

Common stock, par value $5 per share:
Class A, authorized 75,000,000 shares,; issued 22,055,835 and 23,556,472 shares
Class B, authorized 600,000 shares; issued 555,992 shares
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized loss on equity securities
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts
Pension and postratirement
Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements beagin on page 34,

‘ Decémber 30,l
2007'

3 32,938
103,500

o 878'
- 137316

- 897.572
311,588

211,583

110,279
2,780
19,713

(8,417)
(68,860)
857,512

7 _913,007?

. § 2471066

December 31,
2006

3 34.039
91,972

4,518

1,074

131,601

916,320

281,670

238,277

117,782
2,780
58,173

(708)

(5,129)
{(105,413)
872,873
937,350

$ 2505228
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.
Accumulated

Class A Common Stock Adgsgﬂ Cc*np:ehecr)g\?; Retained
{in thousands, except shares and per share amounts) Shares ClassA  Class B Capital  Income (Loss) Eamings Total
Balance at December 26, 2004 23230100 § 116,150 $ 2780 $ 36650 §| (50652) § 1078832 § 1,183,769
Net loss E - (243,042} (243,042}
Unrealized loss on equity securities (net of deferred tax
benefit of $1,747) - - (3,065) - {3,065)
Unrealized gain on derivative contracts {net of deferred
taxes of $1,390) - - 242 - 2,421
Minimum pension liability (net of deferred tax benefit of
$7.837) - (13,322 {(13.322)
Comprehensive income (loss) (257.,008)
Cash dividends to shareholders ($0.84 per share) - - - {20,163) (20,163)
Exercise of stock options 111,664 558 - 4,726 - - 5,284
Performance accelerated restricted stock 146,520 733 - 2,523 - - 3,256
Income tax benefits relating to stock-based compensation - 811 - - 811
Cther 2,503 12 137 (272) (123
Balance at December 25, 2005 23,490,696 117,453 2,780 44,856 (64.518) 815,355 915,826
Net income - - 79,042 79,042
Unrealized loss on equity securities (net of deterred tax
benefit of $176) - - {309) - (309)
Reclassification of loss included in net income (net of
deferred tax benefit of $254) - - 446 - 448
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts (net of deferred tax
benefit of $899) - - (1,578} - (1,578)
Minimum pension liability (net of deferred taxes of $5,358} - 10,048 10,048
Comprehensiva income 87,649
Pension and postretirement adoption (SFAS #158) (net of
deferred 1ax benefit of $31,477) - - (55,237) - (65,237)
Cash dividends to shareholders ($0.88 per share) - - - 21,180 {21,180)
Exercise of stock options 55,700 279 - 1,324 - - 1,603
Stock-based compensation - 8,244 - - 8,244
Income tax benefits relating to stock-based compensation - 308 306
Cther 10,076 50 443 (344) 149
Balance at December 31, 2006 23,556,472 117,782 2,780 55,173 {111,248) 872,873 937,360
Net income - - 10,687 10,687
Unrealized loss on egquity securities (net of deferred tax
benefit of $912) - - (1,600) - {1,600)
Reclassification of loss included in net incoms {net of
deferred tax benefit of $1,314) - - 2,306 - 2,206
Unrealized loss on derivative contracts (net of defemed tax
benefit of $1.874) - - (3.288) (3.288)
Pension and postretirement (net of deferred taxes of $21,021) - - 36,553 36,5563
Comprehensive income 44,658
Uncertain tax position adoption (FIN #48) - - (4.821) (4,921)
Cash dividends to shareholders ($0.92 per sharg) - - - (21,156) 21,156)
Exercise of stock options 14,800 74 - 348 - - 422
Repurchase of commen stock (1,500,000) (7.500) (41,216) - - {48,716}
Stock-based compensation 82) 5,230 - 5,148
Income tax benefits relating to stock-based compensation - 110 - 110
Other (15,437) 5 68 29 102
Balance at December 30, 2007 T 20085835 § 110279 $2780 $19713 |$ (277§ 857512 $ 913,007,
Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments begin on page 34.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
MED#A GENERAL, INC.

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... I TIPS PP

Fiscal Years Ended

' December 30,‘ December 31, Oecember 25,
2007 2006 2005
{in thousands} 5 o {53 weeks)
Cash flc-lws from operating activities: " o
Net income {loss) $ 10,687 £ 79,042 $ (243,042
Adiustments to reconcile net income {loss):
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - 325,453
Depreciation 53,109 47,7 43,256
Amgcrtization 25,34, 24,842 24,673
Deferred income taxes 16,289 11,176 7,241
Provision for doubtful accounts 5,929 5,660 5,866
Investment loss (income) - unconsolidated affilates 31,392 (10,598) (1,119
Insurance proceeds related to repair costs 19,959 - -
Gain on insurance recovery {1 ?',604)I - -
Met loss {gain) relatad to divestiture of discontinued operations 2,000 {11.029)
Net gain on sale of Denver investment - . (19,391)
Net write-down of investmenis 3,433 700 -
Change in assets and liabilities:
Retirement plan contributions - {15,000) (15,000)
Retirement plan accrua 5,444 16,543 14,233
Income taxes payable {17,518) 71 {23,431)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (6,636) {1,699} (5,412
Other, net (996} 9,920 {11,579)
Net cash provided by operating activities B _1139.82_9: 158,059 101,788
Gash ﬂow§ from investing activities: !
Capital expenditures (78,142) (93,896) (74.424)
Purchases of businesses (2,525) {611,385) (6.676)
Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations and investrment | - 135,111 45,850
Insurance proceeds related to machinery and equipment 27,841 - -
Distribution from unconsolidated affiliate 5,000 2,000 -
Other, net N 8.245_ (2,853) 4,573
Net cash used by investing activities i 77(391581): (571,023 (30,677)
Cash flows from financing activities: ' B
Increase in debt 570,000 1,459,000 344,000
Repayment of debt {588,823} {1,027.984) (391,978)
Stock repurchase (48,716) - -
Debt issuance costs (1,010) (1,780} (3.793)
Cash dividends paid (21,156) (21,180 (20,163)
Cther, net . 743 1,861 5,975
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (88,962_! 409,917 (65,957)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2-.;.8(; (3,047 5,154
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . __1 1 ,929_ 14,976 9,822
Cash and C:Iash equivalents at end of year ' $ 714;2_1_ §_‘ $ 11,829 S 14,976

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements begin on page 34.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in Decemnber.
Results for 2007 and 2005 are for the 52-week periods ended Decem-
ber 30, 2007 andl December 25, 2005, respectively; results for 2006
are for the 53-week period ended December 31, 2006.

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of
Media General, Inc., subsidiaries rmore than 50% owned and certain
variable interest entities, now dissolved (see Note 5), for which Media
General, Inc. was the primary beneficiary (collectively the Company).
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
gliminated. The equity method of accounting is used for investments
in companies in which the Company has significant influence; gener-
ally, this represents investments comprising approximately 20 to 50
percent of the voting stock of companies and certain partnership in-
terests. Other investrnents are generally accounted for using the cost
method.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S.
generally accepled accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The Company
re-evaluates its estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Presentation
Certain prior-year financial information has been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s prasentation.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s principal sources of revenue are the sale of adver-
tising in newspapers, the sale of newspapers to individual subscribers
and distributors, and the sale of airtime on television stations. In ad-
dition, the Company sells advertising on its newspaper and television
websites and portals, and derives revenues from other online activities,
including an online advergaming and game development firm. The
Company also derives revenue from the sale of broadcast equipment
and studio design services. Advertising revenue is recognized when
advertisements are published, aired or displayed, or when related
acivertising services are rendered. Newspaper advertising contracts,
which generally have a term of one year or less, may provide rebates or
discounts based upon the volume of advertising purchased during the
terms of the contracts. Estimated rebates and discounts are recorded
as a reduction of revenue in the period the advertisement is displayed.
This requires the Company to make certain estimates regarding future
advertising volumes. Estimates are based on various factors including
historical experience and advertising sales trends. These estimates
are revised as necessary based on actual volume realized. Subscrip-
tion revenue is recognized on a pro-rata basis over the term of the sub-
scription. Amounts received from customers in advance are deferred
until earned. Revenues from fixed price contracts (such as studio de-
sign services or advergaming development) are recognized under the
percentage of completion method, measured by actual cost incurred
to date compared 1o estimated total costs of each contract.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in excess of current operating needs is invested in various
short-term instruments carried at cost that approximates fair value.
Those short-term investments having an original maturity of three
months or less are classified in the balance sheet as cash equivalents.

Derivatives
Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the bal-

ance sheet at fair value. Ifa
value is gither offset against t
itern through earnings, or rec

e change in the fair value of the hedged

{erivative is a hedge, a change in its fair
gnized in Other Comprehensive Income

(OCH until the hedged item ig recognized in earnings. Any difference
between the fair value of the hedge and the item being hedged, known
as the ineffective portion, i§ immediately recognized in earnings in
the line item “Other, net” durdng the period of change. For derivative

instruments that are design
portion of the change in valy
as a component of the Com

hted as cash flow hedges, the effective
e of the derivative instrument is reported
pany's OC! and is reclassified into earn-

ings (interest expense for interest rate swaps and newsprint expense
for newsprint swaps) in the pame period or periods during which the
hedged transaction affects garnings. For derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instriments, the gain or loss is recognized in
the Company's current earmngs during the period of change. Deriva-
tive instruments are carried pt fair value on the Consolidated Balance
Sheats in the applicable line Jtem “Other assets” or “Other liabilities and
deferred credits”™.

Accounts receivable and goncentrations of credit risk

Medlia General is a divergified communications company which sells
products and services to a vide variety of customers located principally
in the southeastern United [States. The Company's trade receivables
result from its publishing, bfoadcast and interactive madia operations.
The Company routinely asgesses the financial sirength of significant
customers, and this assessment, combined with the large number and
geographic diversity of its jcustomer base, limits its concentration of
risk with respect to trade rgcaivables. The Company maintaing an al-
towance for doubtiul accouhnts based on both the aging of accounts at
period end and specific allgeations for certain customers.

Inventories

Inventories consist prijcipally of raw materials (primarity newsprint)
and broadcast equipment}and are valued at the lower of cost or mar-
ket using the specific idenfification method.

Self-Insurance
The Company self-ingures for certain employee medical and dis-
ability income benefits, wprkers’ compensation costs, as well as au-
tomobile and general liability claims. The Company’s responsibility for
workers' compensation and auto and general liability claims is capped
at a certain dollar ievel (generally $100 thousand to $500 thousand
depending on claim typa). Insurance liabilities are calculated on an
undiscounted basis based on actual claim data and estimates of in-
curred but not reported ¢laims. Estimates for projected settiements
and incurred but not repgrted claims are based on development fac-
tors, including historical tfends and data, provided by a third party.

Broadcast film rights

Broadcast film rightp consist principally of rights to broadcast
syndicated programs, sgorts and feature films and are stated at the
lower of cost or estimatgd net realizable value. Program rights and
the corresponding contractual obligations are recorded as other as-
sets (based upon the expected use in succeeding years) and as other
liabilities {in accordance| with the payment terms of the contract) in
the Consolidated Balange Sheets when programs become avaitable
for use. Generally, program rights of one year or less are amaortized
using the straighi-line method; program rights of longer duration are
amortized using an accierated method based on expected useful life
of the program.

Property and depreciation

Plant and equipmept are depreciated, primarily on a straight-lins
basis, over their estimatied useful lives which are generally 40 years for
buildings and range frofn 3 to 30 years for machinery and equipment.
Depreciation deductiorfs are computed by accelerated methods for
income tax purposes. Major renovations and improvements and inter-




est cost incurred during the construction period of major additions are
capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor renova-
tions are charged to expense as incurred.

Intangible and other long-lived assets

Intangibles consist of goodwill (which is the excess of purchase
price over the net assets of businesses acquired), FCC licenses, sub-
scriber lists, network affiliations, other broadcast intangibles, intellec-
tual property, and trademarks. indefinite-lived intangible assets are not
amortized, but finite-lived intangibles are amortized by the straight-line
method over periods ranging from 1 to 25 years. Internai use software
is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated ussful life, not
to exceed 5 years.

When indicators of impairment are present, management evalu-
ates the recoverability of long-lived tangible and finite-lived intangible
assets by reviewing current and projected profitability using undis-
counted cash flows of such assets. Annually, or more frequently if
impairment indicators are present, management evaluates the recov-
erability of indefinite-lived intangibles using estimated discounted cash
flows to determine their fair value.

income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with
SFAS Na. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires recogni-
tion of deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial state-
ments or tax returns.

Comprehensive income

The Company's comprehensive income consists of net income,
pension and postretirement related adjustments, unrealized gains and
losses on certain investments in equity securities (including reclassifi-
¢ation adjustments), and changes in the valus of derivative contracts
as well as the Company’s share of Other Comprehensive Income from
its investments accounted for under the equity method.

Recent accounting proncuncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 157,
Fair Value Measurements (FAS 157), which establishes a common
definition for fair value under U.S. generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples and creates a framework {or measuring fair value. The FASB
believes that the new standard will make the measurement of fair
value more consistent and comparable and improve disclosures about
those measures. FAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company adopted FAS 157 at the begin-
ning of fiscal 2008, which will result in additiona! disclosures relating
to its financial assets and liabilities such as available-for-sale securities
and interest rate swaps. The Company is continuing to evaluate the
future impact of FAS 157 on its financial statements regarding non-
financial assets and liabilities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 141{R),
Business Combinations, which amendad the provisions of FAS 141
and will provide international conformity with respect to accounting

{in thousands)

Revenuss

Costs and expenses
Income before income taxes
Income taxes

Income from discontinued operations
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for business combinations. Some of the more significant aspects of
this Statement include; the acquiring entity in a business combination
must recognize 100% of the assets acquired and liabilities assumead in
the transaction as well as any minority interest; establishes the acquisi-
tion date as the measurernent point for all consideration; and requires
expensing transaction costs related to the business combinatiort. This
Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008.

In September 2006, the FASB issued EITF 06-1, Accounting For
Consideration Giver by a Service Provider to Manufacturers or Resell-
ers of Equipment Necessary for an End-Customer to Receive Service
from the Service Provider, which expands the scope of the previously
issued EITF 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to
a Customer {Including a Reseller of the Vendor'’s Products) to include
third-party manufacturers and resellars who are not customers of the
vendor. Pursuant to this accounting guidance, cagh consideration
paid to these parties is typically required to be recorded as a reduction
of revenue rather than as expense. The Company’s adoption of EITF
06-1 at the beginning of fiscal 2008 will have no impact on net income
and will amount to less than 1.5% of consclidated revenues.

Note 2: Acquisitions, Dispositions and Discontinued
Operations

The Cormpany has initiated a plan to divest three of its television
stations and their agsociated websites located in mid-sized markets
in the Southeastern United States. The divestitures are expected to
occur during the first half of 2008. The stations are: WMBB in Panama
City, Florida, KALB/NALB in Alexandria, Louisiana, and WNEG in Toc-
coa, Georgia {an independent satellite station of WSFA in Spartanburg,
South Carolina). The divestitures may occur in more than one transac-
tion. Since the Company does not expect to recover itg carrying value
less its costs to sell, the Company has accrued an aftar-tax loss of $2
million related to these divestitures.

in the second half of 20086, the Company sold KWCH in Wichita,
Kansas (including that station's three satellites), WIAT in Birmingham,
Alabama, WDEF in Chattanooga, Tennessee, and KIMT in Mason City,
lowa, to three different buyers. Gross proceeds from the divestitures
were $135 miltion, including working capital; a net after-tax gain of $11
million was recerded. The Company facilitated these transactions as a
tax-defarred, like-kind exchange in conjunction with the acquisition of
faur NBC stations (discussed below). Depreciation and amortization
of assets sold ceased during the second quarter of 2008,

The 2007 accrued loss related to the stations currently held for
sale, and the 2006 net gain from the stations sold in that year, are
shown on the face of the Consolidated Statements of Operations on
the line “Net gain (loss) related to divestiture of discontinued operations
{net of income taxes).” The results of these siations and their associ-
ared web sites have been presented as discontinued operations in
the accompanying Balance Sheets and the Staterments of Operations
fcr all periods presented. Income from discontinued operations in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended December 30, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 25,
2005 included:

2007 2006 2005

s 19,071 $ 50,400 $ 57,544
15,210, 42,331 53,328
3,861 8078 4216

_ 1,506 3,150 1,644
'$ 2355 $ 4928 $ 2572
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As of December 30, 2007, the assets of discontinued operations
consisted of approximately $3 million of current assets, $13 million
of fixed assets, and $46 million of intangible assets including FCC K-
censes, network affiiations and $11 million of goodwill.

The Company completed the acquisition of four NBC owned and
operated television stations at the beginning of the third quarter of
2006 for $609 milion, including transaction costs. This transaction
was accounted for as a purchase and has been included in the Com-
pany's consolidated results of operations since its date of acquisition.
The stations acquired were: WNCN in Raleigh, North Carolina, WCMH

{In thousands, except per share armounts)

Revenues

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
Income from discontinued operations

Gain on sale of discontinued operations

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss} per common share - assurning dilution:

Income from continuing cperations before cumulative effect of change of accounting principle

Discontinued operations, inctuding 2006 gain on sele of $0.46 per share
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Net income {loss)

Note 3: Intangible Assets

The Consolidated Statements of Operations include amartization
expense from continuing operations for finite-lived intangibles of $17.8
miflion, $17 million and $15.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respec-
tively. Currently, intangibles amortization expense is projected to be

As of December 30, 2007
Gross Carrying

(in thousands) Amount Amortization
Amortizing intangible assets (including network affiliation, adver-
tiser, programming and subscriber relationships):

Broadcast $ 246,919 $ 76,352

Publishing
Interactive Media
Total 5

in Columbus, Ohio, WVTM i

Providence, Bhode Island.
The following summary

forma consolidated results of
ber 31, 2006 and December
telavision stations from NBC
of each period presented. TH
tive of what would have ocqg

made as of such date, nor
ocecur in the future.

accounting principle

approximately $16 million
million in 2009, $12 millicn
The following table shows

" Birmingham, Alabama, and WJAR in

presents the Company’s unaudited pro
operations for the years ended Decem-
5, 2005, as if the acquisition of the four
had been completed as of the beginning
e pro formas do not purport to be indica-
urred had the acquisition actually been
Bre they indicative of results which may

Years Ended

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005

$ 1,015,851 3 962,853
$ 58,886 5 70,413
4,928 2,572

11,029 -
- (325,453)
$ 74,843 $ {252,468)
% 2.47 $ 294
0.67 01
- {13.63)
% 3.14 $ {10.58)

n 2008, decreasing to approximately: $13
in 2010 and 2011, and $3 million in 2012.
he gross carrying amount and accumulated

amortization for intangible|assets as of December 30, 2007, and De-

cember 31, 2006:

Accumulated

Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Goodwil:
Broadcast 3
Publishing
Interactive Media
Total goodwill

FCC licenses

|
Other i

Total

g

280,996
642,161
1,902
925,069
492,436
2,005

1. 419,500

Gross Carrying
Amount

% 246,919
35,141

2,570

8 284,630

5 280,996
640,661

1,802

923,559
492,436

1,987

$ 1,417,982

]

As of December 31, 2006

Accumulated
Amortization
$ 61,943
28,637

1,316

3 92,896




The Company adopted EITF Topic D-108 at the beginning of fis-
cal 2005. D-108 requires the use of a direct method for valuing all
intangible assets other than goodwill. The Company had used the
residual value methed, a commeonly used method at the time, to value
the FCC licenses purchased in conjunction with acquisitions made
in 1997 and 2000. It had also recorded goodwill, primarily related
to deferred taxes, as part of these transactions. In connection with
the adoption of D-108, the Company eliminated the distinction be-
tween goodwill and FCG license intangible assets that were recorded
as part of these prior acquisitions by reclassifying $190.3 million from
goodwill to FCC licenses. Concurrent with the adoption, the Company
increased the carrying amount of FCC license intangible assets by an
additional $111.5 million with a corresponding increase to deferred
tax liabilities. There was no impact on impairment results previously
reported. Further, the Company valued its FCC licenses using a direct
method discounted cash flow model and assumptions that included
the concept that cash flows associated with FCC licenses are limited
to those cash flows that could be expected by an average market par-
ticipant. In contrast, the residual value method formerly used by the
Company included other elements of cash flows which contributed to
station value. The results of this direct method were then compared to
the carrying value of FCC licenses (including the reclassified amounts)
on a station-by-station basis and a $325.5 million write-down, net of
income tax benefit, was recorded as a cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle in 2005,

SP Newsprint Company
{In thousands)

Current ass;ets

Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

{in thousands)

Net sales ,

Gross profit {loss)

Net income {loss)

Company’s equity in net income (loss)

Additional write-down of Company’s investment

The Company is committed to purchase 35 thousand tons of
newsprint annually from SPNC, In 2007, the Company purchased
approximately 58 thousand tons of newsprint from SPNC at market
prices, which totaled $30 million and approximated 56% of the Com-
pany's newsprint needs; in 2006 and 2005, the Company purchased
approximately 57 thousand tons of newsprint from SPNC which ap-
proximated 46% and 429%, respectively, of the Company’s newsprint
needs in each of those years and totaled approximately $34 million
and $30 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Additionally, in order
to facilitate SPNC extending the maturity of its revolving credit agree-
ments for several months, the partners have pledged to make ad-
ditional capital contributions (not to exceed $7.3 million per partner) to

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 4: Investments

The Company’s equity method investments include a ons-third
partnership interest in SP Newsprint Company (SPNC), a domestic
newsprint manufacturer, and an approximate 18% interest in a limited
partnership investment company which the Company recognizes on
a three-month lag. In June 2005, the Company sold its 20% interest
i1 The Denver Post Company (Denver) when MediaNews Group, Inc.,
exercised its option to purchase the Company’s interest. The Com-
pany sold Denver for $45.9 million and recorded an after-tax gain of
$19.4 million {net of taxes of $13.9 milion) cn that sale in 2005.

The Company’s share of results from SPNC declined significantly
during 2007 due to the combination of lower newsprint selling prices
and higher raw materials costs. A strategic review initiated by the part-
ners in May 2007 resulted in SPNC's announcement, in January 2008,
that it had entered into an agreement with certain affiliates of White
Birch Paper Company to be acquired for $350 milfion in an all-cash
iransaction. The acquisition, which is subject to regulatory approval,
is expected to close during the first four months of 2008. As a result of
this agreement, SPNC wrote off goodwill on its books (the Company's
share of this write-off was $3.7 milion) and the Company recorded
an additional pre-tax write-down of $10.7 million to its investment in
SPNC. Both losses were recorded in “Investment income (loss) — un-
consolidated affiiates” on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
The additional write-down recorded is subject to final adjustment upon
closing of the sale. The chart below presents the summarized financial
information for the Company's investment in SPNC together with the
additional write-down taken by the Company.

2007 2006

'$ 120382 § 112,871

349,082 393,762

233,586 60,087

51842 168,651

- 2007] 2006 2005
'$ 572,125 $ 638377  § 584,161
(525) 84,509 50,775
(59,939) 31,562 3,114
(19,980) 10,521 1,038
(10,656) - ,

SPNC if centain events related to its sale do not take place.

Retained earnings of the Company at December 30, 2007, in-
cluded $7.7 million related to undistributed earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates.

The Company has an investment in a company that produces in-
teractive entertainment including games and to whom the Company
has licensed proprietary game content. The Company, which carries
this investment at fair value, recognized write-downs of its investment
in 2007 and 2006 of $3.6 million and $700 thousand, respectively, to
ieflect its approximate fair value due to the extended pericd the stock
price of this publicly traded security has been befow the Company’s
carrying value.
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Note 5: Long-Term Debt and Other Financial Instruments

Long-term debt at December 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, was as follows:

(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility

Bank term loan facility

Borrowings of consolidated variable interest entities
Bank lines

Capitalized lease

Long-term debt

The Company has a $1 billion revolving credit facility as well as a
$300 million variable bank term loan agreement {together the “Facili-
ties"} which mature in 2011, The Company's debt covenants require
the maintenance of an interest coverage ratio in addition to a lever-
age ratio, as defined. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company
amended the Facilities to increase the maximum leverage ratio cov-
enant and reduce the minimum interest ratio covenant for a period of
three fiscal quarters. The amendment also modified the circumstance
under which ceriain subsidiary guarantees would be in place. Interest
rates under the Facilities are based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate {LIBOR} plus a margin ranging from Q.3% to 0.7% (C.7% at De-
cember 30, 2007), determined by the Company's leverage ratio. The
Company pays fees (0.175% at December 30, 2007) an the entire
commitment of the facility at a rate also based on its leverage ratio.
As of December 30, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all
covenants and expects that the covenants will continue to be maet.

In ithe first quarter of 2007, the Company repaid, at maturity, $95
million in debt that existed as the result of consolidating certain vari-
able interest entities (VIEs} in which the Company had controlling finan-
cial interest by virtue of certain real property leases. At that time, the
Company purchased the facilities by using existing capacity under its
revolving credit facility.

At Decemnber 30, 2007, the Company had borrowings of $2.5 mil-
lion from bank lines due within one year with an interest rate of 5% that

{in thousarids)

Assets:
Investments

Liabilities:
Long-term debt:

were classified as long-te
intention and ability to refi
under existing facilities.
Long-term debt mat
December 30, 2007, agg
2008 and $895 million in
In the third quarter of
term toan that existed at t
notes which matured on
of 2006, the Company en

- 2007 2006
'§ 595000 § 505,000
300,000 300,000
- 95,320
2,500 16,000

. 72.
'$ B97572 B 916320

debt in accordance with the Company's
nce these obligations on a long-term basis

rities during the five years subsequent to
ating $897.6 million, were $2.6 million in
011,

006, the Company drew down the full bank
t time and redeermed $200 million of senior
ptember 1, 2008. Also in the third quarter
red into several interest rate swaps as part

of an overall strategy to manage interest cost and risk associated with
variable interest rates, primarily short-term changes in LIBCR. These
interest rate swaps are cdsh flow hedges with notional amounts to-
taling $30C million; swapg with notional amounts of $100 million will
mature in 2009 and $200 illion will mature in 2011. Changes in cash
flows of the interest rate [swaps offset changes in the interest pay-
ments on the Company’s 5300 million bank term loan. These swaps
effectively convert the Comipany’s variable rate bank term lean to fixed
rate debt with a weighted average interest rate approximating 6.4% at
December 30, 2007.

The table that follows ncludes information about the carrying val-
ues and estimated fair valpes of the Company’'s financial instruments
at December 30, 2007 ang December 31, 2006:

Revolving credit facility

Bank termn loan facility

Bormowings of censolidated variable interest entities
Bank lines

Interest rate swap agreements

2007 2006
$ 1.874 $ 4,426
595,000 505,000
300,000 300,600

- 85,320

2,500 16,000
13,214 5.822
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The Company's investrents which have a readily determinable
value and are classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value,
with unrealized gains or losses, net of deferred taxes, reported as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. The carrying value of
the long-term debt in the chart above approximates its fair value. The
interest rate swaps are carried at fair value based on a discounted
cash flow analysis of the estimated amounts the Company would have
received or paid to terminate the swaps.

Note 6: Business Segments

The Company, located primarily in the southeastern United States,
is a diversified communications company which has three operating
segments: Publishing, Broadcast and Interactive Media. The Publish-
ing Segment, the Company's largest based on revenue and segment
profit, includes 25 daily newspapers and more than 150 weekly news-
papers and other publications. The Broadcast Segment consists of
20 network-affiiated broadcast ielevision stations and a provider of

equipment and studio design services. The Interactive Media Seg-
ment consists of all of the Company's online enterprises and an online
advergaming and game development firm.

Management measures segment performance based on operat-
ing cash flow (oparating income plus depreciation and amortization)
as well as profit or loss from operations before interest, income: taxes,
and acquisition related amortization. Amortization of intangibles is not
allocated 1o individual segments although the intangible assets them-
selves are included in identifiable assets for each segment. Intercom-
pany sales are accounted for as if the sales were at current market
prices and are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The
Company's reportable segments, which are managed separately and
contain operations that have been aggregated based on similar eco-
nomic characteristics, are strategic business enterprises that provide
distinct products and services using diverse technology and produc-
ticn processes.

Interactive

yp——— . —

(tn thousands) ' Pgb!ishinﬁgﬁ - "Broadcast B __I\/I_g_(_:_t_i_a Eliminations . Total‘
2007 , ) S 7 - T - ‘
Consolidated revenues $ 544,757 § 358,367 & 36,181 $  (7.124) $ 932,181°
Segment operating cash flow $ 11513 $ 91,587 $ {941) .8 205,777
Allocated amounts: .
Net write-down of investments (3,433) (3.433):
Depreciation and amortization .(25,095} o 7@37691) (1_,{552) : ) (52.638)
Segment profit (oss) "$ 90036  $ 65806  § (6226 149,706
Unallocated amounts: * !
Interest expense : (59,577)
Invesiment loss — unconsolidated affiliates | (31,392)
Acquisition intangibles amortization (17,773}
Corporate expense (37,856}
Gain on insurance recovery 17,604
Other . 6758)
Consolidated income from continuing operations o o
before income taxes : . & 1395
! —
Segment assets | $ 968,436 $ 1,226,078 $ 12,028 . $ 2,208,542
Corporate } " 202,960/
Discontinued operations - 61 ,564J
Consolidated assets ' E«Gﬂ)@_
Segment capital expenditures $ 34,933 $ 36,553 $ 1,316 ' $ 72,802
Corporate ," 4,010
Discontinued operations 1,330:

Consolidated capital expenditures

) : [

$ 78,142
[tiin e —
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(in thousands)
2006
Consolidated revenues
Segment operating cash flow
Allocated amounts:
Write-down of investment
Depreciation and amgrtization
Segment profit (loss)
Unallocated amounts:
Interest expense
Investment income — unconsolidated affiliates
Acquisition intangiblas amortization
Corporate expense
Other
Consolidated income from continuing
operations before income taxes
Segment assels
Corporate
Discontinued operations
Consolidated assets

Segment capital expenditures

Corporate

Discentinued operations
Consolidated capital expenditures

2005

Consolidated revenues

Segment operating cash flow

Allocated amounts:
Equity in net income of unceonsolidated affiliate
Gain on sale of Denver
Depreciation and amortization
Segment profit (loss)

Unaliocated amounts:
Interest expense
Investment income — uncensolidated affiliates
Acquisition intangibles amortization
Corporate expense
Other

Consolidated income from continuing opera-

ticns before income taxes and cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle
Segment assets
Corporate
Discontinued operations
Consolidated assets

Segment capital expenditures

Corporate

Discontinued operations
Consolidated capital expenditures

Publishing
$ 601,144

$ 144,048

(24,876)
$ 119,172

$ 966,008

$ 488632

P

587,849
$ 151,268

221
33,270

(22,709)
$ 182,050

$ 944,482

$ 36,548

3
3

&

3

$

&

$

$

$

Broadcast
343,118 $
115,304 3

{(19,936)
95,368 $
1,223613 $
32,337 $
256,900 3
77,478 $

(15,000)
62,388 S
606,833 $
22,476 5

Interactive
Media

27,113
(1,629

(700
(1,479
(3,808

16,453

1,823

20,365
{2,344)

(1,419)
(3,763)

15,762

1,438

Eliminations

$ (6518 $

%
$

©>

$  @ar721) %
&

&

&

Total

964,857
257,723

(700)
146,291)
210,732

(48,505)
10,598
(17,018)
(39,997)
(15,713)

100,097

2,206,074
234,635
64,519
2,605,228

82,792
3,698
7,406

93,896

860,393
226,402

221
33,270
(39,218)

220,675

(29,408)

898
(15,191}
(37,785)
(10,262)

128,927

1,567,077
231,508
176,769

1,875,354

80,462
5,393
8,569

74,424
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Note 7: Taxes on Income
Significant components of income taxes from continuing operations are as follows:

(in thousands) 2007° 2006 2005
Currenrl: . | ) -
Federa! $ (10,710) $ 23862 $ 38521
State . (1 ,9571 2,174 3,326
Total  (12,667) 25,836 41,847
Deferred: ' ‘
Federal 13,432 8,208 5,383
State ) 2,857 ] 2,878 1,858
Total 16289 11,176 7,241
Income taxes ‘ kB 3.622: $ 37,012 $ 49,088

T

Temporary differences, which gave rise 1o significant components of the Company's deferred tax liabilities and assets at December 30, 2007,
and December 31, 20086, are as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax liabilties: ' o )
Difference between book and tax bases of intangible assets $ 303,252 $ 278,736
Tax over book depreciation 87,346 89,816
Other . se7 7,666
Total deferred tax liabilities 391,165 374,218

Deferred tax assets: ‘
Employee benefits (37.271) (32,963)

Acquired net operating losses (2,107) (2,686)

OCther comprehensive income items (44,245) (63,793)

Other . (5,908)' (2,797)
Total deferred tax assats | (89.531) (102,239)
Deferred tax liatilities, net 301,634 271,979
Deferred tax assets included in other current assets L 9.954; 9,691
Deferred tex liabilies '$ 311,588 $ 281,670

Reconciliation of income taxes computed at the federal statutory tax rate to actual income tax expense from continuing operations is as follows:

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Incornle taxes computed at federal statutory {ax rate l ” $' 4,884' $ 35084 $ 45125
Increase (reduction) in income taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 585 3,283 3,365
Other . (1 ,847)‘ {1,305) 598
Incorr}e taxes ] $ B 3.@22; $ 37,012 $ 49,088
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The Company paid income taxes of $6.9 million, $27.1 million and
$51 million, respectively, net of refunds in 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The Company adopied the provisions of FASB Interpretation No.
48, Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes — an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), on January 1, 2007. The Com-

{in thousands)
Batance at January 1, 2007
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions for prior years
Reductions for tax positions for prior years
Reductions due to seitlements
Balance at December 30, 2007

The entire balance of the liability for uncertain tax positions would
impact the effective rate {net of related asset for uncertain tax posi-
tions) if underlying issues were sustained or favorably settled. The
Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to uncer-
tain tax positions in the provision for income taxes. At December 30,
2007, the liability for uncertain tax positions included approximately
$5.2 million of estimated interast and penalties.

For federal tax purposes, the Company’s tax returns have been
audited through 2003 and remain subject to audit for years 2004 and
beyond. The Company has various state income tax examinations
ongoing and at varying stages of completion, but genarally its state in-
come tax returns have been audited or closed to audit through 2003.

Note 8: Common Stock and Stock Options

In the second quarter of 2007, the Company entered into an ac-
celerated share repurchase program with an investment bank, Un-
der this program, the investment bank delivered 1.5 million shares of
Class A Commeon Stock to the Company for approximatety $57 mil-
lion ($38.10 per share). Those shares were immediately retired and
accounted for as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. The share re-
purchase was funded with borrowings under the Company's existing
credit agreements. As part of the transaction, the Company entered
into a forward contract with the investment bank. The forward con-
tract was settled in the third quarter and included a price adjustment
based on the volume weighted-average price of the Company's Class
A Common Stock, as defined in the agreement. After this adjustment,

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net loss, as reported

Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects

Pro forma net loss

Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic - as reported

Basic - pro forma

Diluted - as reported

Diluted - pro forma

pany recognized an approximal
for uncertain tax positions, wh

e $4.9 million net increase in the liability
ich was accounted for as a reduction

of retained earnings, as of Japuary 1, 2007. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending balances of the gross liahility for uncenain 1ax

positions is as follows;

the final share repurchase total

Holders of the Class A com
the Board of Directors and, with
also are entitled to vote on the
and on certain specified types
acquisitions. Class B common
common stock on a share-for-
Both classes of common stock

The Company adopted Stal

s 17218
190

1,531

(722)
s
8 15421

ed $48.7 million ($32.48 per share).

mon stock are entitled to elect 30% of
the holders of Class B common stock,
reservation of shares for stock awards
of major corparate reorganizations or
stock ¢an be converted inte Class A
share basis at the option of the holder,
receive the same dividends per share,
ement 123(R), Share-Based Payment,

a revision of SFAS No. 123, Acpounting for Stock-Based Compensa-

tion, as of the beginning of 200

using the modified prospective meth-

od. Results for 2005 have not been restated. Prior to the adoption of
Statement 123(R), the Compank's stock-based employee compensa-
tion plans were accounted for injaccordance with APB 25, under which
no compensation expense wag recorded because the exercise price
of employee stock options equéled the market price of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. d the Company adopted Staternent
123(R) in 2005, the impact of that statement would have approximated

the impact of FAS 123 {as if the
of that statement had been ap

air-vatue-based recognition provisions
blied) as shown in the following table.

The weighted-average grant dafe fair value of stock options awarded
in 2005 ($20.59) was estimateq at the date of grant using the Black-

Scholes oplion-pricing model
assumptions: risk-free interest

with the following weighted-average
rate of 4.1%; dividend yield of 1.5%:;

volatility factor of 27%; and an gxpected life of 8 yaars.

Year Ended
2005

$ (243,042

(4,928)
$ (247,970

$  (10.33)
$  (1054)

(10.18)
(10.39)




Under the Company’s Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP), the Com-
pany has historically granted stock-based awards to key employees
in the form of nonqualified stock options (Non-Qualified Stock Option
Plan} and non-vested shares {Performance Accelerated Restricted
Stock Plan (PARS)). At the Company's 2006 Annual Meeting, amend-
ments, including one allowing for additional shares to be made avail-
able for future awards, were not approved. Consequently, the Com-
pany did not grant additional stock options or PARS in 2007. The
Company resumed this practice in 2008 after amendmenis to the LTIP
were approved at the 2007 Annual Stockholder Meeting. In the first
quarter of 2007 in order to maintain fong-term compensation objec-
tives for key employees, the Board adopted the Stock Appreciation
Rights (SAR) Plan and approved granis of individual awards thereun-
der on January 31, 2007.

A SAR, which is settled in cash and designed to help align key em-
ployees' interests with those of the Company’s stockholders, provides
the grantee the ability to benefit from appreciation in the valug of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock. The amount realized upon exer-
cise of a SAR is the difference between the fair market value of Class A
Common Stock on the date of grant and the fair market value of Class
A Common Stock on the date of exercise, subject to a maximum in-
crease in value (100% for awards granted in 2007). SARs vest ratably
over a three-year period from the date of grant and have a maximum
five-year term. SARs vest immediately upon the grantes's death or
disability during employment or upon retirement after age 63 with ten
years of service provided that the grantes is employed on December
31 of the year in which the SAR was granted. Upon termination of
employment, the grantee has up to 12 months thereafter to exercise
any vested SAR.

The Company granted 512,600 SARs with an exercise price of
$40.01 in the first quarter of 2007 at a grant-date fair value of $8.79
using a binomial jattice valuation method. No SARs were exercised
during 2007, but 37,200 were forfeited. The weighted-average grant-
date fair value of SARs awarded in 2007 was estimated on the date of
grant using the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 4.8%,
dividend vield of 2.2%, volatility of 24%, and an expected life of 4.4
years. Each quarter, the Company records compensation expense or
benefit ratably over the service pericd and adjusts for changes in the
fair value of SARs. The Company recognized non-cash compensation
expense related to SARs of approximately $0.1 million during 2007,
This compensation expense was included on the “Selling, general
and administrative” line of the Consolidated Condensed Statements
of Operations. Based on the fair value of SARs ($0.57 per SAR) at
December 30, 2007, there was $0.1 milion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to SARs, which would be recognized over

{In thousands, except per share amounts)
Outstan('jing-beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited or expired

Qutstanding-end of year
QOutstanding-end of year less estimated forfeitures

Exercisable - end of year
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a weighted-average period of approximately 2 years. However, a sig-
nificant increase in stock price would cause the actual compensation
cost recognized to be higher due to the variable nature of expense
under the SARs Plan. The Company believes that the issuance of
stock options and PARS providaes for less volatility and better aligns
the interests of its stockholders and employees than SARs awards;
therefore, the Company does not anticipate authorizing further SARs
awards provided adequate shares remain available under the LTIP.

The LTIP is administered by the Compensation Committee and
permits the grant of share options and shares fo its employees for up
to 5 million shares (of which no more than 1.1 million can be used for
PARS). At December 30, 2007, a combined 1,937,025 shares were
available for grants of PARS {no more than 491,431} and stock options
under the LTIP. Grant prices of stock options are equal to the fair mar-
ket value of the undertying stock on the date of grant. Unless changed
by the Compensation Committee, options are exercisable during the
continued employment of the optionee but not for a period greater
than ten years and not for a period greater than one year after termina-
tion of employment; they generally become exercisable at the rate of
one-third each year from the date of grant. For awards granted prior
to 2006, the optionee may exercise any option in full in the event of
death or disability or upon retirement after at least ten years of service
with the Company and after attaining age 55. For awards granted in
20086, the optionee must be 63 years of age, with ten years of service,
and must be an employee on December 31 in order to be eligible to
exercise an award upon retirement. The Company has options for
less than 70,000 shares outstanding under former plans with slightly
different exercise terms.

As indicated above, no stock options were granted in 2007. The
Company valued stock options granted in 2006 using a binomial lat-
tice valuation method. The volatility factor was estimated based on
the Company's historical volatility over the contractual term of the op-
tions. The Company also used historical data to derive the option's
expected life and employee forfeiture rates within the valuation model.
The rigk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury vield curve
in effect at the date of grant. The dividend vield was predicated on the
current annualized dividend payment and the average stock price over
the year prior to the grant date. The weighted-average grant-date fair
vatue of stock options awarded in 2006 ($15.50) was estimated on the
date of grant using the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of
4,4%, dividend yield of 1.4%, volatility of 28%, and an expected life of
8.6 years.

The following is a summary of option activity for the year ended
December 30, 2007:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (in years)* Value
2,032 $ 5443
(15) 28.50
{148) 55.58
1,869 $ 5454 58 $ 16
1,846 $ 5460 58 3 16
1,474 $ 54.89 5.2 $ 16

* Excludes 900 options which are exercisable during the lifetime of the optiones and 63,000 options which are exercisable during the continued employment of
the optionae and for a three-year period thereafter

43




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company recognized non-cash compensation expense relat-
ed to stock options of approximately $3.4 million ($2.2 million after-tax)
and $5.6 million ($3.6 million after-tax) for 2007 and 2006, respectively.
This compensation expense was included on the “Selling, general and
administrative” line of the Consolidated Condensed Statement of Op-
erations. As of December 30, 2007, there was $2 million of total unrec-
ognized compensation cost related to stock options expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1 year.
The total intrinsic vaiue of options exercised during 2007 was $0.1
millicn; cash received from these options exercised was $0.4 million.
The actual tax benefit realized from option exercise of share-based
payment arrangements was nominal. In 2007, the Company also re-
flected $0.1 milion of excess tax benefits as a financing cash flow in its
Statement of Cash Flows.

Certain executives are eligible for Performance Accelerated Re-
stricted Stock (PARS), which vests over a ten-year period. If certain
earnings targets are achieved (as defined in the plan) vesting may
accelerate to eilher a three, five or seven year period. The recipient
of PARS must remain employed by the Company during the vesting
period. PARS is awarded at the fair value of Class A shares on the
date of the grant. At December 30, 2007, the following shares remain
unvested under the terms of the plan: 144,600 shares granted in 2005
at $63.18, 136,600 shares granted in 2003 at $56.03, 102,500 shares
granted in 2001 at $561.41, and 57,400 shares granted in 1999 at
$47.91, Al rastrictions on PARS granted prior to 1989 have been
released.

As of the end of 2007, there was $9.9 milicn of totai unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to PARS under the LTIP; that cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approxi-
mately 5.8 years. The amount recorded as expense in 2007, 2006,
and 2005 was $1.8 million, $2.6 milion, and $3.3 million, respectively.

Each non-employee member of the Board of Directors of the
Company participates in the Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan.
The plan provides that each non-employee Director shall receive half
of his or her annual compensation for services to the Board in the
form of Deferred Stock Units (DSU); each Director additionally may
elect 10 receive the balance of his or her compensation in either cash,
DSU, or a split between cash and DSU). Other than dividend credits,
deferred stock units do not entitle Directars to any rights due o a
holder of common stock. DSU account balances may be settled after

(tn thousands)
Change in bensfit obligation:
Benefit cbligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Participant contributions
Plan amendments
Actuarial gain
Acquisition
Benefit payments

Benefit obligation at end of year

the Director’s retirement date|by a cash lump-sum payment, a single
distribution of common stock| or annual installments of either cash or
common stock over a period gf up to ten years. The Company records
expense annually based on the amount of compensation paid to each
director as well as recording an adjustment for changes in fair value of
DSU. In 2007, 2006, and 20 %5. the Company recognized benefits of
$0.5 million, $0.4 milion and $0.2 million, respectively, under the plan
due to the decrease in fair valbe of DSU.

Note 9: Retirement Plans

The Company has a funded, qualified non-contributory defined
benefit retirement plan which|covers substantially all employees, and
non-contributory unfunded gqupplemental executive retirement and
ERISA excess plans which supplement the coverage available to cer-
tain executives. The Company also has a retiree medical savings ac-
count {established as of the beginning of 2007) which reimburses em-
ployees who retired from the Company for certain medical expanses.
In addition, the Company alsofhas an unfunded plan that provides cer-
tain health and life insurance penefits to retired employees who were
hired prior to 1992, The preyicusly mentioned plans are collectively
referred to as the “Plans”. Thg Company used a measurement date of
December 31 for the Plans.

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company announced a rede-
sign of its defined benefit and rdefined contribution retirement plans as
well as the addition of certain hew employee benefit programs. These
changes are expected to reduce the volatility of future pension ex-
pense while continuing to provide competitive retirement benefits to
employees. The changes hegame effective at the beginning of 2007
and incfuded: freezing the senfice accrual in the current defined benefit
retirement plan for existing employees (while closing this plan to new
employees), increasing the maximum Company match in the current
401(k) defined contribution plgn to 5% from 4% of an employee's earn-
ings, adding a profit sharing component 10 the 401{k) plan, and estab-
lishing a retiree medical savings account.

Benefit Obligations

The following table providps a reconciliation of the changes in the
Plans' benefit obligations for|the years ended December 30, 2007,
and December 31, 2C06:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
$ 437,267  $ 417.972 $ 50995 & 32,166
1,096 14,585 491 396
24,995 25,235 2,943 2,559
; . 1,421 1,047
(18) - 2,189 13.210
(38,239) (4,807) (6,828) {110)
. - 5,011
. (16808 (15669 ey (®.284
_$ 408293 § 437,267 $ 47,748 $ 50995




The accumuiated benefit cbligation at the end of 2007 and 2008
was $349 million and $361 million, respectively. The Company’s policy
is to fund benefits under the supplemental executive retirement, ex-
cess, and all postretirement benefits plans as claims and premiums
are paid. As of December 30, 2007 and December 31, 20086, the

Discount rate

Compensation increase rate
1

A 9.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered
health care benefits was assumed for both 2007 and 2006. This rate
was assumed to decrease gradually each year to a rate of 5% in 2014
and remain at that level thereafter. These rates can have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for the Company’s postretirement obli-
gations, A one-percentage point increase or decrease in the assumed
health care trend rates would change the Company's accumulated

{Iin thousands)
Changle in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Participant contributions
Benefit payments

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
1
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benefit obligation related to the supplemental executive retirement and
ERISA excess plans included in the preceding table was $46.4 milion
and $51.2 million, respectively, The Plans’ benefit obligations were
determined using the following assumptions:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 (2007 2008
Fé.Sb;V; 6.00% "675;)?& 6.00%
_4.00 ] 4.00 _"4.00 . 4.00

postretirement benefit cbligation by approximately $800 thousand and
the Company’s net periodic cost by $75 thousand.

Plan Assets

The following tabie provides a reconciliation of the changes in the
fair value of the Plans' assets for the years ended Becember 30, 2007,
and December 31, 2006:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2007 2006 L 2007 2006

3 297622  $ 265205 % PR

25,860 31,386 .

1,734 16,609 ‘ 2,524 2,727
- - 1,12 1,047
__(18,808) (15,668) . 864 (3.774)

"3 308408 § 207622 s - 8

The asset allocation for the Company's funded retirement plan at thes end of 20067 and 2006, and the asset allocation range for 2008, by asset

category, are as follows:

Asset Category
Equity securities
Fixed income securities

Total
1

As plan sponsor of the funded retirement plan, the Company’s
investment strategy is 1o achieve a rate of return on the plan's assets
that, over the long-term, will fund the plan's benefit payments and will
provide for other required amounts in a manner that satisfies all fidu-
ciary responsibilities. A determinant of the plan’s returns is the asset
allocation policy. The Company’s investment policy provides absolute
ranges (55%-75% equity, 25%-45% fixed income) for the plan’s long-
term asset mix. The Company periodically (at least annually) reviews

Asset Percentage of

Allocation Range Plan Assets at Year End
2007, 2006

569%-75% " 73%; 73%
25%-45% . 27%, 27%

. 100% 100%

and rebalances the asset mix if necessary. The Company also reviews
the plan’s overall asset allocation to determine the proper balance of
securities by market capitalization, value or growth, U.S. or interna-
tional, or the addition of other asset classes. Periodically, the Com-
pany evaluates each investment manager to determine if that manager
has performed satisfactorily when compared to the defined objectives,
similarly invested portfolios, and specific market indices.
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Funded Status

The following table provides a statement of the funded status of the Plans at December 30, 2007, and Pecember 31, 2006:

{In thousands)

Amounis recorded in the balance sheet:
Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Pension Benefits Other Beneafits
o 2007' 2006 2007. 2006
% (1,860) $ (1,667) ; $ (3,466) $ (3,879
7 (98225) (137.978) L_ {44,282) (47,1186)
$ (99,885) $ (139,645) P $ (47,748) $ (50,995

Net amount recognized

The following table provides a recongciliation of the Company’s accumulated cther comprehensive income prior to any deferred tax effects:

Pension Benefits

Net actuarial Pricr service
{irr thousands) {gain) loss (credit) cost
December 31, 2006 $ 143,525 $ (259)
Current year change (47,588) 35
December30,2007  $ 95937  §  (224)

Other Benefits
Net actuariai Prior service
Total {gain) loss cost Total
$ 143,268 $ 13 $ 14,801 $ 14814
{47 553) {6,754) 468 {5,256)
$ 95713 $ @®74n $ 15269 § 8528

The Company anticipates recognizing $5 million of actuarial
loss and $1.7 million of prior service cost, both of which are cur-
rently in accumulated other comprehensive income, as a compo-
nent of its net periodic cost in 2008.

Expected Cash Flows
The following table includes amounts that are expected to

Company expects to receivg in Medicare subsidy payments. It
reflects benefit payments that are made from the Plans' assets
as well as those made directly from the Company’s assets and
includes the participants' share of the costs, which is funded
by participant contributions] The amounts in the table are ac-
tuarially determined and reflect the Company’s best estimate
given its current knowledge: jactual amounts could be materially

be contributed to the Plans by the Company and amounts the different,
Medicare
{iry thousands) Pension Benefits Other Benefits  Subsidy Receipts
Employer Contributions
2008 (expectation) to participant benefits $ 11,713 $ 4,084 $ -
Expected Benefit Payments/Receipts
2008 16,595 4,064 487
2009 16,998 4,471 532
2010 18,000 4,488 586
2011 19,444 4,873 639
2012 20,985 4,744 699
2013-2017 129,285 24,600 4,308
Net Periodic Cost
The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the Plans for fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005:
Pension Benefils Other Benefits

(in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 poo7 2006 2005
Service cost S 1096 § 14535 § 13796 |49 § 396 0§ 205
Interest cost 24,995 25,235 22,440 | 2,943 2,559 1,866
Expected return on plan assets (24,808) (25,306) (24,871) - - -
Amortization of prigr-service cost (53)'j 11 209 1.721 “ 1,182 462
Amortization of net loss {gain) 8.296‘ 7,412 7,078 ('r'4)1 - 853
Curtailment loss _________—J 497 - ) J - -

Net periodic benefit cost 19 9,526| & 22,384 $ 18852 [ é_ __E@ $ 4,137 3 3,476




As part of its purchase accounting for the 2006 NBC station ac-
quisition, the Company recorded $5.3 million of liabilities in that year
related to post-retirement and retiree medical savings account benefits

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

Compensation increase rale
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granted to those new employees.
The net periodic costs for the Company’s pension and other ben-
efit plans were determined using the following assumptions:

Pension Benefits __Other Benefits
© 2007, 2006 " | 2007] 2006 !
6.00% 5.80% " 6i00% 5.80%
. 850 8.80 . -
4.00 3.75 400 375

'Assumption as of the beginning of the year. The Plans were remeasured as of April 30, 2008 in conjunction with the redesign of retirement benefits using the
following assumptions: discount rate 6.5%, expected return on plan assets 3.5%, and compensation increase rate 4.0%.

The reasonableness of the expected return on the funded retire-
ment plan assets was determined by four separate analyses: 1) raview
of 18 years of historical data of portfolios with similar asset allocation
characteristics done by a third party, 2) analysis of 10 years of his-
torical performance assuming the current portfolio mix and investment
manager structure done by a third party, 3) review of the Company's
actual portfolio performance over the past 10 years, and 4) projected
portiolio performance, assuming the plan's asset allocation range,
done by a third party. Net periodic costs for 2008 will use a discount
rate of 6.5%, an expected rate of return on plan assets of 8.5%, and a
compensation increase rate of 4.0%.

The Company also sponsors a 401(k) plan {which beginning in
2007 included a profit-sharing component} covering substantially all
employees under which the Company matches 100% of participant

2007
. e
Per Share/
Amount)

|

‘ Income Shares
(Numerator) (Denominator)

{in thousands, except
per share arnounts)

Basic EPS

Income from continuing
operations available to

common stockholders

before cumulative effect

of change in acgounting
principle $

10,332 22656 $ 045 &
e ey

|

Eftect of Dilutive Securities

Stock options -
Restricted stockand other | {58) 171
Diluted EPS

Income from continuing

operations available to

common stockholders

plus assumed conversions

before cumutative effect

of change in accounting

principle $ 10,274

22827 $ 045 %

Income
{Numerator)  (Denominator)

63,085

63,031

pretax contributions up to a maximum of 5% of the employeg's salary
in 2007 (maximum match was 4% prior to 2007). Eligible account
balances may be rolled over from a prior employer's qualified plan,
Contributions ¢charged to expense under the ptan were $10.6 million,
$8.7 milion and $8.2 miliion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The Company also recorded $5.8 million of expense in 2007 reflecting
the amount it expects to pay in profit sharing contributions.

Note 10: Earnings Per Share

The following chart is a reconciliation of the numerators and the
denominators of the basic and diluted per share computations for in-
come from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle, as presented in the Consolidated Statements
of Operaticns.

2006 2005

Per Share
Amourt

Per Share
Amount

Income Shares
(Numerator)  (Denominator}

Shares

23597 § 267 $ 79,839 23527 § 339

- 121

{54} 187 (68 B 236

23784 § 265 § 79773 23884 § 334
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Note 11: Commitments, Contingencies and Other

Broadcast film rights

Over the next 6 years the Company is committed to purchase
approximately $53.4 million of program rights that currently are not
available for broadcast, including programs not yet produced. If such
programs are not produced, the Company’s commitment would expire
without obligation.

Capital commitments

The Company currently has several significant projects involving
new buildings and press equipment. [t also is in the process of replac-
ing a centralized traffic system in its Broadcast Division. Remaining
commitments on these projects at December 30, 2007, totaled ap-
proximately $8.1 million.

Lease obligations

The Company rents certain facilities and equipment under operat-
ing leases. These leases extend for varying periods of time ranging from
one year to more than twenty years and in many cases contain renewal
options. Total rental expense from continuing operations ameunted to
$9.2 million in 2007, $7.9 million in 20086 and $6.0 million in 2005. Mini-

(i thousands)
Payroll and employee henefits
Unearned revenue
Fire damage repair cosis received in advance (see below)
Prograrn rights
Other
Total

Insurance Recovery

In the second quarter of 2007, one of three presses at the Com-
pany's Richmond Times-Dispatch printing facility near Richmond, Vir-
ginia, caught fire; damage to the remainder of the facility was minimal
and the remaining presses were back in operation the next day. The
Company has insurance {0 cover the damage as well as the interrup-
tion to its business. In the fourth quarter, the Company reached a
settlement with the insurance company and received cash of $47.7
milliont (net of the $100,000 deductible that was recorded as an ex-
pense in the second quarter) which covered the damaged press as
well as the Company's clean-up and repair costs, $14.4 milion of
which will be expended subsequent to year end. The Company wrote
off the net book value of the destroyed equipment totaling $10.2 mil-
lion. The insured value of the property exceeded its net book value by
$17.6 million, which was recorded as a gain on insurance settlement
in the fourth quarter.

mum rental commitments for g

ontinuing operations under operating

leases with noncancelable termg in excess of one year are as follows:

2008 - $7.1 million; 2009 - $6
$4.5 million; 2012 — $3.7 million

Interest
In 2007, 2006 and 2005, th
{0 continuing operations was 4

0 milion; 2010 — $5.6 mifion; 2011 -
subsequent years - $9.8 million.

e Company's interest expense related
2.6 million (net of $1.4 million capital-

ized), $48.5 million (net of $1 mlion capitalized) and $29.4 million (net

of $0.8 million capitalized), respt
during 2007, 2006 and 2005, 1
million, $48.4 miliion and $23.6

Other current assets
Other current assets includs
$15.7 milion at December 30,

spectively. At December 30, 20

refundable income taxes of $12

Accrued expenses and other
Accrued expenses and oth
following:

bctively. Interest paid for all operations
et of amounts capitalized, was $58.3
Imillicn, respectively.

xd program rights of $15.8 million and
2007, and December 31, 2008, re-
07, other current assets also included
9 million.

turrent liabilities
er current liabilities consisted of the

Other

. 2007, 2006
s sa677 $ 81565
21,244 21,567
14,428 .
14,936 16,001
[ 18215 22,839
|s 103,500 $ 91,072

The FCC has mandated a reallccation of a portion of the broad-

cast spectrum to others, incluging Sprint/Nextel. According to the
FCC order, broadcasters must purrender their old equipment to pre-
vent interference within a narrowed broadcasting frequency range. In
exchange for the relinquished gquipment, Sprint/Nextel is providing
broadcasters with new digital equipment and reimbursing associated
out-of-pocket expenses. Qver the next two years, Sprint/Nextel will
provide the Company with new pquipment which is capable of meet-
ing the narrowed broadcasting frequency criteria. The Gompany re-
corded gains of $.9 rmillion in 2047 in the line item “Selling, general and
administrative” on the Consoligated Statements of Operations and
anticipates recording gains apgroaching $7 million in total over the
next two years relating to the nepv equipment.




QUARTERLY REVIEW
MEDIA GENERAL. INC.

First Second Third Fourth
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
;-'20074 o - o ’ - - ﬂ_ o -
Revenues 3 226,299 $ 236,646 $ 225451 $ 243,785
Operating income 6,515 24,444 23,458 . 52,813
Income (loss) from continuing operations (6,609} 4,696 1,804 10,441
Income from discontinued operations 105 424 678 , 1,148
Net loss related to divestiture of discontinued operations - - - (2,000)
Net income {loss) (6,504) 5,120 2,482 9,589
. Income (loss) per share from continuing operations {0.27) 0.21 0.08 0.47¢
! Income (loss) per share from continuing operations - assuming |
dilution (0.27) 0.21 0.08 0.47
Net income (loss) per share 0.27) 0.23 0.11 0.43:
Net inco_rf_a__e_ @_s_s) per share - assurming dilution i - 0.27) 0.22 - om OE
‘Shares traded o R  e4ars 18389 o477t 14,633
Stock price range $ 36.50-43.94 $ 32.32-39.50 § 26.68-3462 - § 20.25-31.40§
) hQuartf_r_I! dividend paid o i o $_ _ 0.23 $77 ~oa23 $§ 023 % - _023
2006
Revenues % 213,629 3 225,629 $ 236,273 $ 289,426
Cperating incorme 17,643 31,556 24,961 63,621
Incerme from continuing operations 6,637 17,752 7,409 31,287
Income from discontinued operations 30 2,424 1.359 1,115
Net gain on sale of discontinued operations - - 11,802 {773)
Net income 6,667 20,176 20,570 31.829
Income per share from continuing operations 0.28 0.75 .31 1.33
Income per share from continuing operations - assuming dilution 0.28 0.75 0.31 1.32
Net income per share 0.28 0.85 0.87 1.34
Net income per share - assuming dilution 0.28 0.85 0.87 1.33
Share:a traded A I 6,434 9,135 10,1186 7.690
Stock price range $ 46.17-53.00 $ 35.74-47.74 $ 35.65-44.16 $ 33.80-38.79
Ouam,arly dividend paid 7 ( $ 0.22 $ 0.22 $ 0.22 $ 0.22

* Media Genaral, Inc., Class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchangs under the symbol MEG. The approximate number of equity security
holders of record at February 3, 2008, was: Class A common - 1,462, Class. 8 common — 11.

* In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company initiated a plan to sell three of its telavisions stations and recorded a net loss related to the divestitures of $2
million {net of income taxes of $0.7 million). In the third and fourth quarters of 2008, the Company sold certain telavision stations and reported a net gain on
these sales of $11 million (net of income taxes of $6.7 million). All prior pericds have been restated to reflect these items as discontinued operations.
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2004

$ 843,372
$ 80,185

{4,998)

{1.651)

(7.477)
31,082
43,897
141,138
58,097

$ 199,235

$ 3.22
0.21

$ 3.43

$ 3.17
0.21

k3 3.38

$ 2,480,335

35,565
37,835
533,280
0.80

hd should be read in conjunction with

2003

$ 786,408

8,078
4,118)

(6,754)

4,672
(10,6686)
34,424
32,783

117,105
57,465
$ 174,570

$ 2.42
0.47
{0.35)
& 2.54

3 2.39
0.46
(0.35)
3 2.50

$ 2,498,278

40,909
31,774
627,289
0.76

old Media General Financia! Services and

EITF Topic D-108, Use of the Residual
lated to variable interest entities of $8.1

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.
Certain of the following data were compiled from the consolidated financial statements of Media General, Inc., a
those statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis which appear elsewhere in this report.
{in thousands, except per share amounts) [ 209[_ 2006 2004
Summary of Operations |[
Operating revenues #® |$ 932,181 $ 964,857 $ 860,393
Net income {loss)} 5 $ 10,687 $ 79,042 $ (243,042)
Adjustrments to reconcile to operating cash flow: !
|
Curnulative effect of change in accounting principle @ | - - 325,45
Income from: discontinued operations @ (2,355) {4,928) (2578
Loss {gain) related to divestiture of discontinued
operations @ 2,000 (11,029
Gain on sale of investment in The Denver Post | :
Corporation - - (33,270
Investment (income) loss - unconsolidated affiliates ! 31,392 (10,598) (1,119
Cther, net i 2,307 {323) (2,458
Interest expense 59,577 48,505 29,408
Income taxes o _3.6224‘ 37,012 49,088
Operating income 107,230 137,681 121,492
Depreciaticn and amortization . 75,235 68,400 59,588
Operating cash flow $ 182,465 $ 206,090 $ 181,07p
Per Share Data; @®@
Income from continuing operations | $ 0.45 $ 267 $ 3.3b
Income from discontinued cperations i 0.02 0.68 el
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle o - - (13.88)
Net income (loss) $ 047 B 33 % (10.3p)
Per Share Data — assuming dilution; ®®
Income from continuing operaticns $ 0.45 2.65 $ 3.3¢
tncome from discontinued operations 0.02 0.67 Q.1q
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . - {13.93}
Net income (loss) 3 0.47 $ 3.32 3 {10.1B)
Other Financial Data: )
Total assets @ i & 2,471,086 $ 2,505,228 $ 1,975354
Working capital {excluding discontinued assets and '
liabilities) ® © 75,724 69,074 64,344
Capital expenditures 78,142 63,896 74,424
Total debt 897,572 816,320 485,304
Cash dividends per share 0.92 0.88 .84
(@) In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Cempany initiated a plan to divest WNEG in Toccoa, Georgia, KALB/NALB in Aleyandria, Louisiana, and WMBB in Panama
City, Florida, and recorded a loss on the divestitures of $2 million (net of income taxes of $0.7 million). In the second half of 2008, the Company sold KWCH
in Wichita, Kansas {including that station’s three satellites), WIAT in Birmingham, Alabama, WDEF in Chattanooga, Tennessee, and KIMT in Mason City, lowa.
The Company reperted a gain of $11 milion {net of income taxes of $8.7 milion). In October 2003, the Company
reported a gain of $6.8 million (net of income taxes of $3.9 milicn). Al pricr pericds have been restated to reflect these items as discontinued operations (net
of taxes).
(b) In the third quarter of 2008, the Company acquired WNCN in Raleigh, North Carclina, WCGMH in Columbus, Ohio, WJAR in Providence, Rhode Island and
WVTM in Birmingham, Alabama.
{c) Includes the recognition in the first quarter of 2005 of a charge, related to using the direct methed to revalue FCC lipenses of $325.5 million {net of a tax
penefit of $190.7 million) as the cumuiative effect of a change in accounting principle resulting from the adoption o
Method to Value Acquired Assets Other Than Goodwill. Also includes the recognition in July of 2003 of a charge
miliion (net of a tax benefit of $3.4 million) as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle resulting from: the adoption of FASB Interpretation 46,
Consofidation of Variable Interest Entities.




PERFORMANCE GRAPH
MEDIA GENERAL, INC.
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The following graph, which is being furnished pursuant 1o ttem 207 of Regutation S-K, shows the cumulative total stockholder return on the
Company's Class A stock over the last five fiscal years as compared to the returns of the Standard & Poor's (S&P) Publishing Index and the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) Market Index. The graph assumes $100 was invested on December 29, 2002 and also assumes reinvestment of

dividends.
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J. Stewart Bryan Il 69, Chairman of the
Board since 1990; Chief Executive Officer 1990-2005;
President 1990-2001. Director since 1974, Chairman of
the Executive Committee, Director of Mutual Insurance
Company Ltd. of Bermuda.

Marshall N. Morton 62, President and Chief
Executive Officer since 2005. Director since 1997, member
of the Executive Commilttee,

0. Reid Ashe, Jr. 59, Executive Vice President
since 2005; Chief Operating Officer since 2001. Director
since 2002, member of the Executive Committee.

Diana F. Cantor 50, Richmond, Va. Director
since 2005, member of the Audit Committee. Managing
Director, New York Private Bank & Trust. Director of
Domino's Pizza.

Charles A. Davis 59, New York, N.Y. Director
since 1989, Chairman of the Compensation Committee,
Chief Executive Officer, Stone Point Capital LLC, Director
of AXIS Capital Holdings Limited, The Hershey Company,
and Progressive Corporation.

Thompson L. Rankin 67, Tampa, Fla. Director
since 2001 and from 1985-1994, member of the Audit
{emmittee. Former President and Chief Executive Officer
of Lykes Bros. Inc. Director of TECO Energy, Inc.

Rodney A. Smolla 54, Richmond, Va. Directer
since 2006, member of the Compensation Committee.
Dean of the Washington and Lee University School of
Law.

Walter E. Williams 71, Fairfax, Va. Director
since 2001, Chairman of the Audit Committee. Professor
of Economics at George Mason University. Nationally
known author, newspaper columnist and broadcast
commentator.

Coleman Wortham Ill 62, Richmond, Va.
Director since 2004, member of the Executive Committee,
member of the (ompensation Committee, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Davenport & Company LLC.
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0. Reid Ashe, Jr.

Coleman Wortharm Il



CORPORATE OFFICERS

H. Graham Woodlief, Ir. 63, Vice President
since 1985, President of the Publishing Division since
1998. |
|
James A. Zimmerman 61, Vice President
since 2001, President of the Broadcast Division since
1991, !

C. Kirkk Read 38, Vice P:es]Fent and President of
the Interactive Media Division sim‘se June 2007,

H. Graham Woodlief, Jr. James A. Zimmerrnan C. Kirk Read

Stephen Y. Dickinson | 62, Chief Accounting
Officer since 2005, Controller Simﬂ 1993.

|
George L. Mahoney 55, Vice President since
2006, General Counsel and Secretairy since 1993.
Lou Anne J. Nabhan ?3, Vice President and
Director of Corporate (ommunicat‘ions since 2001. Vice
President of Reynolds Metals Co. 1‘998—2000.

John A. Schauss SZ,Wc‘e' President -

__F | 1) Finance and Chief Finandial Ofﬁce#since 2005, Treasurer
Stephen Y. Dickinson George L. Mahaney Lou Anne J. Nabhan since 2001. Deputy Treasurer of George Washington
University 1998-2001.

|
James F. Woodward 4‘8 Vice President since
2005, Director of Human Resources 1999-2005.

Please see Directors for biographird‘l' information (page 52).

‘1
J. Stewart Bryan Il Chairman of the Board
|
Marshall N. Morton Pre sident and Chief
Executive Officer

John A Schauss James F. Woodward

0. Reid Ashe, Jr. Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Form 10-K And Other Filings

The Company posts all its SEC filings to its Web site. Stockholders
who would like a copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or its
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, may obtain either or both

from the corporate Web site or by contacting:

Corporate Communications

Media General, Inc.
PO.Box 85333
Richmond, Va. 23293-0001
{804) 649-6059
mgoodhead@mediageneral.com
www.mediageneral.com

Certifications

The Company has filed the required certifications as exhibits to its
Form 10-K. Additionally, the Chief Executive Officer has provided
the annual certification to the New York Stock Exchange.

Annual Meeting

Stockholders of Media General, Inc,, are invited to attend the
Annual Meeting on April 24, 2008, at 11:00 a.m. at the Richmond
Newspapers Production Facility, 8460 Times-Dispatch Blvd,,
Mechanicsville, Va.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
Corporate Trust Department
6201 Fifteenth Ave.
Brooklyn, N.Y. 11219
(800) 937-5449

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Media General Class A stockholders receive a 5 percent discount
from the market price when they reinvest their dividends in
additional Media General shares. Participants in the Plan also may
make optional cash purchases of Class A common stock at market
price and pay no brokerage commissions. To obtain the Plan
prospectus and enrollment card, write or call the transfer agent.
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